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THE COURT: Would y'all like to come_forward?
THE CLERK: Your Honor, this is case number

2009~GS-23-2422, Randy Erwin Jennings, indictment for

Agrand larceny, third property offerise, pleading to the

same. It is a true bill. 2009—GS—23—2423, indictment
for burglary, first degree, pleading to the same. 1It is
a true bill. 2009-GS-23-3628, indictment for forgery,
two counts, pleading to the same. Forgery value less
than 5,000.

THE CObRT: Would you swear him in?

THE CLERK: Would you raise your right hand, please?

RANDY JENNINGS

Having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Sullivan, you represent

“Mr. Jennings in this matter, sixr?

MR. SULLIVAN: - I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT? All right. And you had the opportunity
to discuss with him his Constitutional rights, to include
his-right to trial by jury, and his right against
self-incrimination? -

MR. SULLIVAN: I have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. And you've also discussed

with him the maximum possible penalties that he can

"receive under the law to the offenses to which he is

pleading guilty?
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MR. SULLIVAN: I have,.iour Honor.
" THE COURT: ~All riéht.. All these are trﬁe billédj
And it's you’re understandiﬁg that he -understands and
appreéiates the ramifications of his pléa, wishes to

waive his Constitutional rights this morning and enter a

‘plea of guilty, sir?

MR. SULLIVAN: That is my understanding, Your Honor.

THE COURT: . Do yoh‘agree.with decision, sir?

MR. SULLIVAN: I do.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Jennings, you recbgnize, sir,
that you havé a right to a jury trial on these charges?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And you~re¢oghi;e that ‘if you were to

have a jury trial that a jury of 12 of your peers would

. be empaneled and in that proceeding the State would have

the burden of proving you guilty beyond a reasonable

doubt. Do you understand that?

MR. JENNINGS: VYes, .sir. -

THE COURT: And you further understand that in-that

- proceeding you would not have the burden of proving

yourself innocent. You wouldn't Have'the burden of
proving anything. You couldn't be compelled to testify,
or to say anything, or to put any evidence into the

record. ' You could remain silentvthroﬁghout that

proceeding and require and compel the State to meet its
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burden of proving each and every element of all of these
offenses beyond a reasonable doubt. Do you understand?
MR. quNINGs;' Yeé, sir.
" THE COURT: Okay. And even though you have'that‘
right to remain silent, you could, if ydu wanted to, take

the stand and ybu could testify and you could tell the

- Jjury your side of the story. You could put up witnesses

in your defense. You could present légal defenses to the
charges which have been levied against you. And you
could also cross-examine any'of-the State's witnesses, to
include those persons who ére testifying against you. Do
you understand that, sir?

MR. JENNINGS: <Yes, sir..

THE COURT: All right, sir. And, sir, do you wish
to waive those rights today and enter a plea of guilty?

MR. JENNINGS: Can I ask him a question? |

THE COURT: Sure, absolutely.

(The defendant had a discussion with his attorney

off the record.) |

MR. JENNINGS: 1I'll just go ahead and plead out.

THE COURT: All right. BAnd understanding these
riéhts as I have explainedvthem to you, do you wish to
waive those rights and proceed with a plea this morning,
sir? -

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.
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THE COURT: All right. And in indictment 2009-3628,
you're charged with forgery, value less than $5,000. And

you understand the maximum possible punishment that you

could receive under the law for that offense is five

years?

MR. MOYER: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Is up to five years. Do yoq understand
that, sir? | |

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

~ THE COURT: And how do you wish to plead to that

offense, sir? | |

MR. JENNINGS: Guilty.

THE COURT: All right. And indictment number

- 2009-3628, you're charged with an additional count of

forgery. And you recognize that under the lawIYOu could
receive an additional and consecutive five years in jail?
Do you understand that, sir?
MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir;
. THE COURT: All right. And how do you wish to plead
to that offense?
MR..JENNINGS: Guilty.

THE COURT:  In indictment 2009-2423, you're charged

with burglary, first degree. And under the law you

recognize that you could receive up to life in prison?

Do you understand that, sir?
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MR.

MR.

MR.

THE

JENNINGS: Yes, sir.
SULLIVAN: Answer.
JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

COURT: All right. And how do wish to plead to

that offense, sir?

MR.

THE

JENNINGS: Guilty.

COURT: And in indictment 2009-2422, you're

charged with grand larceny, third property offense. And

under that indictment you could recei&e up to 10 years.

Do you understand that, sir?

MR.
THE
to that,
MR.

THE

JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

COURT: All right. And how do you wish to plead
sir?

JENNINGS: Guilty.

COURT: And you understand that these, the

maximum possible penalties that you receive under all

these offenses, could be run consecutively and in

addition

to one another? That is they could be combined.

Do you understand?

MR.

THE
continue

MR.

THE

JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

COURT: All right. And knowing that you wish to
with your plea of guilty this morning,-sir?
JENNINGS: Yes, sir. |

COURT: All right. Has anyone forced,

threatened, or made you in any way enter into this plea,
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sir?

MR. JENNINGS: No, sir.

THE bOURT: And has anyone'promised you anything in
exchange for that plea? ’

MR. JENNINGS:. No, sir.

MR. MOYER: Are you pleading gquilty of your own
freewill because you are guilty, sir?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And have you had the opportunity to
discuss this matter with Mr. Sullivan as much as you've
needed to, sir? | |

MR. JENNINGS:' No, sir. Not that I feel -~ I feel
thét I haven't really. That was the grounds for me
wanting another attorney and I didn't feel that I had got

to discuss everything with him properly but you decided

. against it, so ---

THEVCOURT: Okay. And do you feel like that you're
not satisfied with his serQices, sir?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: How much time do YOU need to talk to
hiﬁ?

MR. JENNINGS: I would like another attorney because
I feel like the reaéon - I didn't know what to say a
while ago because I'm so shookvabout-everyfhing.

THE COURT: Yeah, understand.
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MR. JENNINGS: I didn't know what to say because the
fact that it's a lot time I'm facing. And I was under
the impression,vyou know, that people says this, peopie

say that, you know, just how things go. And I just

figured he. would be more out there to tell me, you know,

to explain things to me, and he wasn't there to‘tell me.

So therefore I missed a plea that could'have'got me a lot

less time.

THE COURT: .Okay. All right.- I understand.. And
specifically your -- your complaints with‘Mr. Sullivan is
that he just hasn't explained things to you enough?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir. |

THE COURT: Okay. And chiefly and primarily you're
problem ‘with that is that you feel like that didn't give
you the opportunity to -~ to avail yourself of a plea
offer that was extended?

.MR. JENNINGS: Yés, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. ALl right. Well, this is what
I'm going to dé. You understand of course ﬁhat I didn't
have to take the recommendation that the State set forth?
Do you understand that? |

MR. JENNINGS: fes, sir.

THE COURT: And they could have put into the record
a recommendation that i sentence in a certéin way, in a

certain form, and I could. have said no to. that. Do you
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understand that?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE CQURT: So ultimately whéther you would come'
before this.éourt or not with a-recgmmendatioh‘it would"

still be up to my discretion as what to sentence you to.

Do you understand that?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir, I understand.

THE COURT: Okay. And do you feel like he hash't

. advised you of ‘your Constitutional rights today?

MR. JENNINGS: He has.
THE COURT: He has?

MR. JENNINGS: I mean, he has advised me? I'm not

quite_understandingHWhét you mean.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. well, this is wﬁat 
I'm tryiné to determine, Mr}'Jehhingsh and that is this,
whether he has:been deficient in some meaningful way. I
hear a iot from people who-are dissatisfied'with their
attorneys for any number of reasons. Sometimes they're
dissatisfied for reasons that aren't neééssafily material
and relevant, .That'is‘they're just not getting along
with their attorney. Doésn’t sound to me like you're.not
getting along Qith Mr. Sullivan.

MR. JENNINGS: Liké I say, I've gotﬁen along with
him fine. I don't mean to.interrupt you, but--~~

THE COURT: No, no, you're fine. You're fine. It
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sounds to me like what you're telling me is that at some
point in time you started listening to people who didn't
know what they were talking about. And that's not
because you didn't -- that's not because Mr. Sullivan
wasn't there and available to disabuse you of
misconceptions that you were getting, it's just that vyou
were listening to them as opposed to Mr. Sullivan.

So I'm going a make a finding without -- without the
benefit of having heard anything that convinces me that
his representation has been deficient, I'm going to make
a finding on the record that his representation of you in
this matter has been competent and sufficient. I
recognize and take into consideration your misgivings
about him and about your opportunity to speak to him
about some material things. ‘So after having gone through
that colloquy I'm going to ask you, has he done
everything you've asked him to do?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Has he answered all your questions?

MR. JENNINGS: To the best of his ability I believe
he has.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Good enough. Have
you understood all the questions that I've asked you
today, sir?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

[
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THE COURT: Okay. And you understand that if you
need some time to talk to him in the next 10, 20 minutes
I'11 give it to you. &and vou understand that I asked you
guestions regarding your right to a jury trial and I've
got a jury pool downstairs that I haven't released. We
can still go forward with a jury trial. Do you want to
discuss that matter with Mr. Sullivan anymore, or do you
have any additional questions you want to pose to him?

(The defendant had a discussion with his attorney

off the record.)

MR. JENNINGS: Okay. Let's go ahead, sir.

MR. SULLIVAN: Judge, the bulk of that was there was
a witness who could be very detrimental who was not here
but she's being brought here by the cfficers as we speak.
And with that witness it would be a high probability he
would be convicted of burglary first.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Mr. Jennings, you
heard what Mr. Sullivan has indicated. Do you agree with
that assessment?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. All right. Mr. Jennings,
have you understood all the questions I've asked you
today?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any additional

2
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guestions that you would like to ask me, or Mr. Sullivan,
regarding your rights before we proceed?

MR. JENNINGS: There's lots of questions I'd like to
ask but I don't want to ---

THE COURT: Well, you're welcome to ask me
something, Mr. Jennings.

MR. JENNINGS: There's no way I can get a plea out
of this like a plea that I had before, a chance that I
made a mistake of taking this road that I did and coming
this far aleng? There's no way to go back to a plea?

THE COURT: That's not-up to me. All right. It's
up to the State. The prosecution makes the determination
as to whether they're going to extend a plea or not.
Ordinarily in this circuit what happens is if you miss
the opportunity to enter your plea then they withdraw
that plea offer. And if you miss the deadline to accept
it then there's nothing the Court can do to -- to make
them put it pack on the table.

I can tell you this, one thing that I know, just
intuitively is that Mr. Sullivan has done his best to try
to get them to put it back on the table. And I think.
that Mr. Moyer will state without equivocation, without
any hesitancy, that he has withdrawn his offer. Is that
correct, Mr. Moyer?

MR. MOYER: That 1is correct, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: And the State is not considering putting
that offer back on the table?

MR. MOYER: That's correct.

THE COURT: And regardless of how much time Mr.
sullivan spends with you attempting to persuade you, will
the State change its position in that regard?

MR. MOYER: That's correct, Your Honor, the State
would not.

THE CQURT: Would any additional time with Mr.
Sullivan, or any additional time in anticipation of trial
cause you to change your mind in any way, shape or form?

MR. MOYER: No, Your Honor. As you just stated it's
our policy -- you stated our policy correctly. And even
if the defendant had received a new lawyer today it would
not have changed the fact, even if the case had been
continued. The -- we would be going forward with the
charges that are before the Court today.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Jennings, you understand
that, sir?

MR. JENNINGS: Not entirely, sir, but I have to.

MR. SULLIVAN: Let me tell you. He controls your
charge.

MR. JENNINGS: Right.

MR. SULLIVAN: Whether to go back to burglary second

and recommend concurrent, or leave you on the trial

|4
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docket for burglary first, that's his decisien. And he's
got bosses. About three years ago they made a
determination about people jerking them around that if
you refuse the plea cffice at the deadline it would go on
the trial docket and the plea offer would be rejected,
and you're subject to go whatever they decided. He has
bosses that say, Mark, Mr. Moyer, your time is up in this
case try it, and don't make another offer. So his
position is even if you got rid of me, which wouldn't
hurt my feelings, and got another lawyer, that you'd
still be looking at burglary first with all the witnesses
you saw on the list. So you'd be in the same boat you
are now just maybe two months, three months from now.

THE COURT: Aand what he's saying even if Johnny
Cochran came back from the grave he's not changing his
mind.

MR. SULLIVAN: That's Mr. Moyer. I don't control
the offers.’

MR. JENNINGS: I understand that.

THE COURT: All right. Do you understand that, Mr.
Jennings?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Any other questions?

MR. JENNINGS: I guess not.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. You have 10 days to
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appeal any sentence that I may hand down. If you make --
if you believe that in any way shape or form that I've
done anything in this proceeding that has been contrary
to your rights, or anything in this proceeding that has
been procedurally deficient, or anything has been
unlawfﬁl in any way you may file an appeal. It must be
in writing filed with the Clerk of Court within 10 days
of today's date. Do you understand that?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Moyer, I'll be happy to hear
the facts, sir.

MR. MOYER: Thank you, Your Honor. May it please
the Court? 1I'll start off with the forgery cases as they
happened first chronologically. In October of 2008 the
defendant was staying -- was living with the victim in
the case who was actually considering himself the common
law husband of this defendant's grandmother. During that
time the defendant stole some checks from the victim. He
forged and he presented them to BB&T Bank in Greenville.
The checks were paid out in the amounts of 100 and $150.
When the victim discovered the forged checks he
confronted the defendant with copies of them. And the
defendant admitted to the victim that -- what he had
done.

A short period after that the defendant started

1,
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staying very briefly with some other relatives on Scuth
Piedmont Highway near Piedmont. During that time in
October 30th of 2008, the victim's home was -- the doocr
was kicked into her mobile home on South Piedmont Highway
in Greenville County and prcoperty was stolen from her
mobile home, including a .22 caliber Browning rifle, a
small safe containing jewelry and a digital camera. The
victim discovered this when she came home from work about
1:30 in the afternoon. Officers discovered that within
hours of the burglary this defendant had been walking up
and down the road attempting to sell the property. He
actually did end up selling the rifle to a man ---

MR. SULLIVAN: At a business.

MR. MOYER: --- at a business right down the road.
And he then pawned jewelry on two different dates at
Williamson Pawnshop which is very close to where this
incident -- where the incident location was as well.

In addition to that the people that the defendant

were staying with saw the property in -- in their trailer
after the defendant did -- committed the crime. He had
the safe and the jewelry in the trailer. When -- when

the two individuals asked the defendant where this came
from he admitted to them that he had kicked in the door
and that he had stolen the property. The defendant was

arrested on November the -- I believe the 29th of 2008.

177



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

18

THE CCURT: All right. Mr. Jennings, 1s that what
happened, six?

MR. JENNINGS: There never was a safe, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. With the exception of the safe is
that substantially what happened, sir?

MR. JENNINGS: Basically, ves. I mean, I was
walking up the road with the stuff but I wasn't alone.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Okay. I do find that
there is a substantial factual basis for the plea. The
same has been entered freely and voluntarily with the
advice of counsel with whom Mr. Jennings indicates he's
satisfied.

Mr. Jennings, I have one additional set of guestions
that I need to ask tc you with respect to the burglary
first. You recognize that the burglary first degree is
classified as a violent and most serious offense under
the law, sir-?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir, Your Honor, I do.

THE COURT: You do. And you understand that because

it's classified as a violent offense that it effects tﬁe
way you do your time, that is the percentage of time you
do under any sentence that you receive. You do
understand that, sir?

MR. JENNINGS: Unfortunately, yes.

THE COURT: All right, sir. And you understand that
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because it's classified as a most serious offense that if
in the future at a later date and time you are coﬁvicted
of a serious or -- another serious or most serious
offense that you could potentially, under the two
strikes, three strikes rule be facing and looking at a
possible punishment of life without the possibility of
parole?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Knowing that do you still wish to
enter your plea to these offenses, sir?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. I will accept the plea. Mr.
Moyer, just -- does Mr. Jennings have any prior record,
sir?

MR. MOYER: He does, Your Honor. 1In 1998 he was
convicted of petty larceny and burglary second degree;
1999, petty larceny and two counts of burglary second
degree, breaking into an automobile, possession of a
controlled substance, failure to stop and resisting
arrest. In 2000 he was convicted of open container; 2001
he was convicted of grand larceny, malicious damage to
personal property. In 2007 he was convicted of criminal
domestic violence, petty larceny; and 2008, grand
larceny, criminal domestic violence, possession of

hypodermic needles.
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THE COURT: All right.
recitation of ---
MR. JENNINGS:

Never --

needle 1n my possession ever

" from needles and I never had

my life.

THE COURT: Okay. With

that a fair recitation?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right.

PROBATION AGENT:
the grand larceny.
June 19th of '08. He had 10

years probation.

Mr. Jennings, is that a fair

never had a hypodermic

in my life. My mother died

a needle in my possession in

the exception of that 1is

Gecod enough.

Your Honor, he is on probation for

He was sentenced in Pickens County on

years suspended to five

That probation began October first of

'08. So he had been out just a few weeks when this

offense happened.

It would be a violation but since

there is a victim in the case they'll have to handle it

at a later date.
THE COURT: All right.

sir, that by pleading guilty

Mr. Jennings, you recognize,

to these offenses it does

amount to a violation of your previously imposed

probation?

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right,

sir. And knowing that you

still want to proceed with the plea of guilty today?

20




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

21

MR. JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Good enough. Mr. Sullivan,
I'd be happy to hear from you,‘sir.

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes, sir. I've gotten to know Randy
some, his family members, his grandmother and his'
step-granddad. This is I guess we've been reading a lot
in the paper about these crimes, but it's the undérlying
drug abuse that's never been addressed. So he's got to
pay the consequences. He's -- he'll be 32 on April 16th?

MR. JENNINGS: 7th, sir.

MR. SULLIVAN: And so he's going to do about at
least 13 on the minimum sentence. He'll be 40 when he
gets out (sic). Hopefully while he's in the system they
can do something to treat the underlying problem.>

This case escalated. He took some checks from Mr.
Smith, who's his grandmother's boyfriend. He admitted he
cashed them on 10/17/08 and another shortly thereafter.
And then couldn't do that any more. A trailler was broke
into and sold stuff out of it. It was all for drugs.
Like I said, he hadn't been out of prison long when this
happened.

Now, the case ~- I saw him in December of '08 and we
discussed it. He knew the charges, pretty much the
facts. I got a letter. I was out for a while with some

illness. It was getting old and Mark e-mailed me and
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said that here's the offer, we'll keep it open longer.
We'll let him plead to burglary second, violence, which
would be an 85 percent. Drop the safe cracking. Grand
larceny, two forgeries, recommend concurrent time, but no
cap or anything. Then he was looking at zero to 15
whatever the judge. Considering with his record he was
probably going to get the 10 to 15 I would figure in that
range.

But he came up on two occasions. I went over the
offer with him. I didn't know he was high. I thcught he
understood. And I told him, I said, if you don't plea
you're going on the trail docket and then this is what
will happen. And maybe he didn't understand, maybe I
didn't recognize him being high. I'm not that close to
him. We don't converse every day. I sent him the trial
docket.

About three weeks ago he called me and I said,
Randy, you're on -- he said, what's this about. I said
you're on the trial dock. Well, I don't want a trial. I
said, well, you need to call me next week. And he didn't
call me. So I called his house and his grandmother told
me was picked up on a DUS. So he was in jail since last
week.

I went to see him -- tried to see him Friday and he

was angry and wouldn't see me. So I saw him yesterday

22
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after we'd broken. I went over and I went over some of

this Stuff with him.. And I told him that if we weren't.
reached today maybe I could grovel and go back to the
offer, but I didﬁ't think so, but I would try. If we
were reached today it was going to be burglary first and
I couldn}t do anytﬁing about it.

So I guess what I'm-asking you is that you
consider -- there is a good time in his life, he will be
older when he gets out, maybe wiser, .that you consider --
well, you got to give him 15. That's the law. Fifteen
to life in a burglary second. I would hope you would
consider 15 years, run everything else concurrent. When
he gets‘through the 15 he's going to have two years
community supervision, so he's not going to walk out
and -- he's got that hanging-over him. After that I
don't know what tbey'll-do with him. I suspect they may
just violate hiﬁ and run it concurrent with what he's
doing now. Hopefully they wouldn't do consecutive. We
can't handle it today, that's down the road.

Mr. Moyer did say he would look into maybe trying to
get the DUS resolved also, be concurrent time or just get
it dismissed in view of this sentence. But I'd ask you
to consider 15 years and everything else concurrent, with
a minimum 15 on the burglary, 10 oh the grand larceny>ahd

two fives. So you've got a lot of range there.
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THE COURT: I understand. All right. Good enough.
Thank you, Mr. Sullivan. ' |

M. Jennings, I'd be ‘happy to heér from you, sir, if
there's anytbing'you'd'like to tell hé.' |

MR, JENNINGS: 1It's all.apologies. I made mistakes.
I tried to straiéhten my life up, but it was a little too
late. That's-all I got to say.

MR, SULLIVAN: Judge, he thinks -- he told me he
thinks, he's not’éurey but he thinks his girlfriend is
expecting and he's going to miss some, if this is true,
some time he said. It made him rethink things. He's

going to miss a good bit of this .child's life, the

formative years. But I told him I couldn't help that.

But that has effected him. I think that's one reason

_he's so emotional.

THE COURT: I understand. All right. Mr.
Jennings, it's ocbvious to me tﬁat youfhave a érofound
drug probleﬁ. You've had it for a period of tiﬁe; It's
caused you to do things that I don't know that you:would
have otherwise done. You appear to mé to be a fairly
intelligent fellow. You've responded to all my questions

in an intelligent manner. You understand, it seems to

- me, clearly what's going on. Which would suggest to me

that you're smart enough to know better than to have done

something this dumb, because your burglary first degree
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it sounds like you got caught because you were just
hanging around on the same street and started running
around selling the stuff right after you had committed
the crime, which means you really didn't care whether you
got caught or not, which tells me that you had to have
been under the influence of drugs pretty badly.

MR. JENNINGS: I was.

THE COURT: And your prior record suggests to me as
well that it's all about drugs.

MR. JENNINGS: It's, like I said, just a little too
late.

THE COURT: Well, okay. On the burglary first, it
rose to the level of burglary first because of the
firearm?

MR. MOYER: Yes, sir.

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SULLIVAN: It was in the daytime but he took a
rifle and it elevated it.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Mr. Jennings, I'm
going to recommend ATU so you can get some help for those
drugs problems as Mr. Sullivan suggested. I will add all
that with the —-- with the burglary first. It seems to me
that's just more of the same. You have a history of just

getting into people's houses, or their stores, or places
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of business and just taking their stuff so you could get
money for drugs.

The sentence of the Court is you be committed to the
State Department of Corrections for a period of 16 years.
It's concurrent. Aﬁy time? Has he done any time?

MR. MOYER: Just 30 days, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 30 days. All right. Credit for time
served for 30 days, recommend ATU. On the forgery, on
each forgery charge, five years, concurrent, credit for
time served of 30 days.

MR. SULLIVAN: Judge, I think all the goods were
recovered in this case. They went to the pawnshop and
found most of them and put a hold on them and got them
back. And they recovered the gun. I think Ms. Cartier
has most of the stuff back. Thank goodness.

THE COURT: All right. Good enough. On the grand
larceny, 10 years, concurrent, 30 days credit for time
served.

PROBATION AGENT: We're having hearings on March
22nd at_fhe jail, can we just write on there to hold him
until that date and we can handle his violation of
probation then without having to send him down the road
and bring him back again?

MR. SULLIVAN: I'll be -- I'll see if Randy will go

along with that. And yes, sir, I'll be available. When?
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PROBATION AGENT: March 22nd.
" THE COURT: Hold in Greenville County Detention

Center until violation of probation hearing on March

22nd.

PROBATION AGENT: Right.

THE COURT: All right. Good luck to you, Mr.
Jennihgs.

MR. JENNINGS: Thank you.
MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you.
MR. MOYER: Thank you, Your Honor.

— - -END OF TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD~ - -
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[N THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.
 "C.A/No. 2011-CP-23-1291

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
, : )
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )
_ v _ )
Randy Erin Jennings, )
S.C.D.C. No. 259845, )
o _ <)

Applicant, ) o
: ) RETURN
V. )
‘ )
State of South Carolina, )
)
)
)

Respondent.

Ix-1 response to the post-convictioﬁ relief application filed February 21, 2011, the
Respondent V\}ould show this Court: |
L
The Applicant is incéfcérated with the South Carolina Department ‘of Corrections |

pursuant to the Greenville County Clerk of Court’s orders of commitment. The ‘Greenville

-County Grand Jury indicted the Applicant at the July 2009 term of General Sessions for grand

lafceny, third or greater property offense (2009-GS-23-2422), ﬁrgt-degree burglary (2009-GS-
23-2423), and two counts of forgerQ,_value_les_s than $5000 (2009-GS-23-3620, counts 1 and 2).
C Timothy Sullivan, Esquire represénted the Applicant. | o |
" On March 3, 2010, the Applicant pled guilty as indicted. The Honorable Robin B.
Stilwell sentenced thc Applicant to concurrent terms of rten_( 10) years for grand larceny, third or
gregter property oft_fense, s'if(_t'een-(‘16) years'for first-degree burglary, and .ﬁve' (5) years for each
count of forgery, value less than $5000. The Applicant did not appeal. \. ' |
Attached heréwith. and incorporated herein by'réferenée are the recordg of the Greenville |

County Clerk of Court regarding the subject convictions and the Applicant’é records. from the



South Carolina Department of Corrections. The plea transcript will be forwarded upon receipt.
IL.
In his application for post-conviction relief the Applicant. alleges he is being held in

custody unlawfully for the following reasons:

[. Ineffective assistance of counsel.
2. [nvoluntary guilty plea.
- 3. Malicious prosecution.
1.

The Respondent asserts the Applicant’slallegation- that his attorney was ineffective is
without merit. The Responcient asserts the Applicant’s attorney réndered effective assistance .
well wi_thin the standard of “reasonableness within professional norms” for a defense attorney.

Where ineffective assisiance of counsel is alleged as é ground for relief, the Applicant
must prove that ‘;counscl’s conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial

process that the trial cannot be relied on as having produced a just result.” Strickland v.

Washington, 466 U.S. 668; 686, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2064 (1984); Butier v. State, 286 S.C. 441,
442,334 S.E.2d 813, 814 (1985). '

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided 'representation
within the range of competence required in criminal cases. The Acourts presume counsel
“rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable
professional judgment.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066. The Applicaﬁt must

overcome this presumption in order to receive relief. _Sgg\Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115,118,386

" S.E.2d 624, 625 (1989).

A two-pronged test is used in evaluating allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel..
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First, the applicant must prove counsel’s performance was deficient. Under this prong, attorney

performance is measured by its “reasonableness under prevailing professional norms.” Cherry v.
@, 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688, 104 S. Ct. at
2065). Second, counsel’s deficient performance must have prejudiced the Applicant such that
“there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, the result of the
proceeding would have been different.” Cherry, '300> S.C; at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. “A

reasonable probability is a probability.sufﬁcient to undermine confidence in the outcome of

trial.” Johnson v. State, 325 S.C. 182, 186, 480 S.E.2d 733, 735 (1997) (citing Strickland v, -
Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104. S. Ct. 2052 (1984)). '

The Respondent submits the ‘Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the Strickland
v. Washington test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises

questions of fact that cannot be conclusively refuted by the record: The Respondent requests an

evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C: 264, 265, 305

S.E.2d 247, 248 (1983) (citing Norman. v. State, 276 S.C. 278,277 S.E.2d 707 (1981)).
V.
‘The Applicant’s assertion that his guilty plea was involuntary is without merit. In post-
conviction relief cases, an applicant asserting a constitutional violation must frame the issue as

one of ineffective assistance of counsel. See Al-Shabazz v. State, 338 S.C. 354,363,527 S.E2d

742, 747 (1999) (citing Drayton v. Evatt, 312 S.C. 4, 9, 430 S.E.2d 517, 520 (1993)). An

Applicant who pledds guilty on the advice of counsel may collaterally attack the plea only by
showing that (1) counsel was ineffective and (2) there is-a reasonable probability that but for

counsel’s errors, the Applicant would not have pled guilty and would have'i.nsisted’ on going to -



trial. Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20, 546 S.E.2d 417, 419 (2001) (citations omitted). An

Applicant alleging his guilty plea was induced by ineffective assistance of counsel must prove

that counsel’s advice was not “within the range of competence demanded of attorneys in criminal

cases.” Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 56, 106 S. Ct. 366, 369 (1985); Bennett v. State, 371 S.C.
198,204, 638 S.E.2d 673, 675 (2006).
To find a guilty plea is voluntarily and knowingly entered.into, the record must establish

the applicant had a full understanding of the consequences of his plea and the charges against

him. See Boykin v. Alabama, 395 U.S. 238, 243-44, 89 S. Ct. 1709, 1712 (1969). In Boykin,
- thé United. States Supreme Com’t held that before a court can accept a guilty plea, a criminal
defendant must-be advised of the consfitutional rights he is waiving. Id. at 243, 89 S. Ct. at
1712. Specifically, the accused muét be ‘aware of the privilege against self-incrimination, the
'right to a jury trial, and the right to confront one’s accusers. I_d;' Moreover, a criminal defendant
entering a guilty plea “must be aware of the nature and crucial elements of the offense, the

maximum and any mandatory minimum penalty, and the nature of the constitutional rights being

waived.” Pittman v. State, 337 S.C. 597, 599, 524 S.E.2d 623, 624 (1999) (citation omitted). A

criminal defendant’s knowing and voluntary waiver of statutory or constitutional rights in a

guilty plea “must be established by a complete record, and may be accomplished by colloquy

between court and defendant, between court and defendant’s counsel, or both.’_’ Roddy v. State,
339 S.C. 29, 34; 528 S.E.2d 418, 421 (2000) (citing State v. Ray, 310 S.C. 431, 437,427 S.E.2d
171, 174 (1993)). )

When de_terfnining issues relating to guilty pleas, the court will consider the entire record,

including the transcript of the guilty plea, and the evidence presented at the post-conviction relief

49
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- hearing. Anderson v. State, 342 S.C. 54, .57, 535 S.E.2d 649, 657 (2000). .

The Respondent submits the record fully supports the knowing and voluntary nature of

the Applicant’s plea. However, allegations regarding ineffective assistance of counsel and the

voluntariness of the plea may raise a question of fact that is not conclusively refuted by the

record. Accordingly, the Respondent requests an evidentiary hearing to. fully resolve this issue.

~See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. at 265, 305 S.E.2d at 248 (1983).

V.

The Respondent denies each allegation not expressly admitted, qualified or explained.

VI

WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the Respondent requests that a hearing be held

and counsel appointed to represent the Applicant.

May 2L, 2011

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W.McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney General

SALLEY W. ELLIOTT
Assistant Deputy Attorney General

KAREN C. RATIGAN

- Assistant Attorney General

P.O. Box 11549
Columbia, S.C. 29211 -

-

e

Attbroeys for Resbo'ndent O




51

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) _
)  INTHE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) :
; 2011-CP-23-1291
'~ RANDY ERIN JENNINGS, 259845 | ; :
_ Applicant,A ; .
Vs | ; AFFIDAVIT.OF SERVICE BY MAIL
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, ;
Respondent. ;
)

1. I am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.

2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that this is a
proper circumstance of service by mail. ’

3. Ihave this day served a copy of the Return in the aboVe—captioned matter on the following person
by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

Randy Erin Jennings, 259845
Perry Correctional Institution
430 Oaklawn Road

" Pelzer SC 29669

DATED this 26th day of May, 2011.

O de Oeu\m/“

Judyl A.(€. Carey, Legal Assistant
‘For Respondent
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copy

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ') IN THE COURT OF COMMONS PLEAS
: - ) CASENO: 2011-CP-23-1291
-~ COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) . . :
) s EEh
Randy Jenmngs 'SCDC # 259845, ) AMENDMENTS TO 8 wzo
Applicant, ) POST CONVICTION \ érﬁa
) RELIEF APPLICATIONS & 2o
- - ARA0L N
) > 208
) Do
THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, ) e =
Respondent. ) =
)

The applicant hereby amends answers to number 9 and number 10 of his Apphcatlon for
. Post-Conviction Relief to state the following;:

9. State concisely the grounds on which you base your aliegation that you are being held in
custody unlawfully: |
(A) The Apphcant was denied effective assistance of counsel in v1olat10n of the
Slxth Amendment to the United States Constxtutlon and Art1cle I, Section 14 of
‘The South Carolina Constitution.
10.

State concisely and in the same order the facts which support each of the grounds set out
in (9): |

(a)

The applicant was provided with deficient representation by his attorney,

in that the conduct of his attorney was objectively unreasonable under the

circumstances. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984). The
eutcome of the applicant"s proceeding was prejudiced, and it is reasonable

probable that the outcome would have been different had counsel’s

performance not been deficient

. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 694. Defense

counsel was ineffective based on one or more of the following




10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

53

My defense attorney failed to conscientiously discharge his
professional responsibilities while he was handling my case.

My defense attorney failed to effectively challenge the arrest and
seizure of Applicant.

My defense attorney failed to act as my diligent, conscientious
advocate.

My defense attorney failed to give me his complete loyalty.

My defense attorney did not have my best interest in mind while he
was supposed to be investigating and preparing my case.

My defense attorney failed to serve my cause in good faith.

My defense attorney neglected the necessary in\}estigations and the
preparation of my case.

My defense attorney dd not do the necessary factual mvest1gat10ns
on my behalf.

My defense attorney did not do the necessary legal-research.‘ '

My defense attorney did not conscientiously gather any information
to protect my rights.

My defense attorney did not try to have my case settled in a matter
that would have been to my best advantage.

Myl defense attorney did not advise me of all my rights or take any
of the actions that were necessary to protect preserve them

“knowing that I was not versed in the law.

My defense attorney, knowing I was illiterate in the law, never
properly ascertained whether or not I actually understood or
comprehended all of the issues that were involved in my case.

My defense attorney never properly consulted with me or kept me
informed with what was going on as far as my case was concerned.
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15.

16.

17.

18.
19.
20.

21.
22.
23.
24.

25.

26.

My defense attorney never explained to me or discussed with me
any of the elements of the crime charged.

My defense attorney never made any attempt to ascertain whether
or not I actually knew what the elements fo the crime charged were
or whether or not I understood exactly ‘what the term “criminal”
element” actually meant.

My defense attorney never explained to me or discussed with me -
how the elements of the crime charge and the evidence that the
prosecution planned to introduce into evidence against me related
to one another and did not discuss how the sentencing would be
done especially as it related to the elements of the crime as in State

V. Boyd.

My defense attorney never informed me of any of the defenses that
were available to me. '

My defense attorney never intended to offer any defense to the

court on my behalf.

My defense attorney never explained to me or discussed with me
any kind of defense strategy.

My defense attorney never explained to me or discussed with me

any of the tactical choices that they either made or were planning to
make. ' :

My defense attorney dictated to me exactly how my case was going
to be handled and offered no alternative options.

. . \ . " N . -
My defense attorney failed to properly acquaint themselves with
the law and the facts surrounding my case and as a direct result of
their intentional negligence, there was a very serious error in their -

" assessment of both the law and the facts. _

Because of my defense attorney’s gross neglect and his many legal

errors no defense at all was put in issue for me during the Court
proceedings.

My defense attorney did not subject the prosecution’s case to any
adversarial testing.

My defense attorney failed to oppose the prosecution’s case with



- 28.

29.

30.

3L
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any adversarial litigation.

My defense attorney failed to function as the government’s
adversary in any sense of the word.

My defense attorney failed to pursue any of the legal recourse that
were available to him.

The attorney that represented me on this charge in Court failed to
function as the counsel that the Constitution’s Sixth Amendment
Guarantees. '

My defense attorney failed to call alibi witnesses on my behalf
which would have proven my innocence.

My defense attorney failed to appeal my case after | was convicted
when I wanted to appeal.

His counsel’s representation was not within the range and scope of competence

demanded by Strickland and its progeny.

A convicted defendant’s claim that counsel’s assistance was so defective as to require

reversal of a conviction requires that the defendant show first, that the deficient performance

prejudiced the defense so as to deprive the defendant of a fair trial. Sosebee v. Leeke, S.C. 362,
~F. 2221 (1987), citing Strickland v. Washington 46 S.E.2D. 813 (1984), See also Butler v.

State 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E. 2d 813 (1985), also, Hill v. Lockhart 474 U.S. 88 (1985).

October 2, 2012

2

[
Rodney Richey

Richey and Richey, P.A.

Post Office Box 10916 4
Greenville, South Carolina- 29603
Attorney for the Applicant




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) IN THE COURT OF COMMONS PLEAS
) CASE NO: 2011-CP-23-1291
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )
- )
i Randy Jennings, SCDC # 259845, ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE _, .
| ) &z E3n.
! C‘“b
vS. ) = R
A ) To=En
- THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) }; iﬁ%
. P E80
- 271
| AN
1 certify that I have served the Amendments to PCR Application on the State of%out

h
Carolina by depositing copy of it in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, on October 2, 2012,

addressed to their attorney of record, Office of Attorney General State of South Carolina, Post
Office Box 11549, Columbia, SC 29211-1549. h

: [y

 Tina Garduno, p?ralegal
Richey and Richey, P.A. -
Post Office Box 10916.

Greenville, South Carolina 29603

Sworn to before me on

October 2, 201

Notary Publit of South Carolina :
My Commission Expires: E// €1/




COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
2011-Cp—23—1291

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE

Randy Jennings TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

State of South Cérolina

October 30, 2012
Greenville, SQuth Carolina

BETFORE:

THE HONORABLE R. MARKLEY DENNiS, JR, Judge.

APPEARANCES

Rodney Richey, Esquire
Attorney for the Applicant

Karen Ratigan,'Esquire
Assistant Attorney General
- Attorney for the State

CAROLINE HISKELL
Thirteenth Circuit Court Reporter
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WITNESSES

Randy Jennings
Tim Sullivan

" (There

INDEX
" DIR CROSS
8 11

16 - 17

were no exhibits presented).
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Robert Jennings versus State of South Carolina’

PROCEEDTINGS
THE COURT: Ms. Ratigan.
MS. RATIGAN: Thank you, Your Honor, may 1t

please the Court.

This is the case of Randy Jennings versus the

State. The Docket No. is 2011-CP-23-1291. Mr. Jennings
is indicted for grand larceny as a third or greater
property offense, burglary first, and two counts of
forgery of a value less than $5,000.

He was represented -on those charges by
Mr. Sullivan seated to my right. -

On March 3rd of 2010, he pled guilty to the
charges as indicted. Judge Stilwell levied concurrent
sentences of ten years for grand larceny third or greater
property offense, 16 years for burglary first, five years
for each of the forgery counts.

He did not file an appeal and the State is
ready to proceed.

' THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Jennings, you talked with your lawyer
about your application, sir. You can remain seated;

APPLICANT JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

. THE COURT: And he has advised you and you .
understand what the options are and that the best outcome

for you is to start all over again?
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Robert Jennings versus State of South Carolina v

APPLICANT JENNiNGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And that'é all I can do for you,
do you understand that? 4

APPLICANT JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

- THE COURT: Are.you prepared to go forward
with this applicatidn? _

MR. RICHEY: He wants to withdraw, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: You do want to withdraw?

APPLICANT JENNINGS: Yes, ‘sir.

| THE COURT: Your lawyer has discussed with
you, first of all, if you do that that~cogld possibly
prevent your reconsidering that decision at a later date
because it would become successivée applications as well as
it could be beyond the statute df limitations fof filing a
post conviction relief, do you understand that?

APPLICANT JENNINGS: Yes, sir. I'm afraid
I'm going to get a lot more time.

THE COURT: Well, that's the catch and that's
what the gentlemen'tﬁat just preceded you, I looked at his
and I looked at yours ahd it's,jusf one year more than 15,.
but it carries a potential life sentence and when I see
somebody getting blose to the minimum it's one of the
things that I do —-- I practiced law before I came a judge

and I had the pleasure of répresenting persons who filed
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Robert Jennings versus State of South Carolina

applications -- it's a big risk. The best might not be
the best for you and that's a concern.

But you've decided for yourself that you
don't want to rﬁn that risk?

APPLICANT JENNINGS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And that's a decision that you
are comfortable with, sir? 7

APPLICANT JENNINGS: I'm not really
comfortable with it but it might be in my best interest
but I'm scared to go forward.. |

THE COURT: ﬁas anyone forced you to take
that position, sir? |

APPLICANT JENNINGS: No, sir.

THE COURT: And have you had sufficient time
to 'think about what you're doing?

APPLICANT JENNINGS: Yeah.

THE COURT: Are you satisfied with the manner
in which.your lawyer has advised you concerning this
matter?

APPLICANT JENNINGS: Not really.

THE COURT: Do you need additional time to
talk with him?

APPLICANT JENNINGS: No, sir.

THE COURT: Unfortunately in this setting,

and I remember the frustrations as an attorney, post
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Robert Jennings versus State of South Carolina

conviction relief is so well defined énd so limited as to
what you can do. You're not asking for this but I
remember some of the first ones I got and I been at it for
a long enough time tb be there when it started, the first
one had a pretty‘good deal too. And I said I can . get you
back andl—— he pled to voluntary manslaughter and got a
12-year sentence. This was before it was any 85 percent
situation. I said the best I can do is go'back and be
tried for murder. He said, I don't want that, I just want
my sentenced reduced. He said that's what they told me I
could go none. _

I said, I don't know who told you that but.

that's not what I can do for you.- I think a lot of times.

‘when you file, you don't really have a chance to give

thought to what the downside could be and that's what
we're talking aboﬁt. There is a significant downside.
It's not complicated. You can always -- you might get the‘
same deal and you might get, and it's only a year less,
but if burg first goes forward but that's your ﬁhance and
you have that right if you want‘to proceed.

Do you want to go forward with it, sir?

Let me explain something to you. It's not
exactly like a guilty plea but it's pretty darn close.
When you withdraw it, you have to sétisfy me that that's

what you really want to do and right now I hear what
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you're saying but your body language is telling me

something else.

APPLICANT JENNINGS: I'm just concerned about

the issue of Mr. Sullivan coercing me and telling me that
I was going to get a life sentence so basically I lied.

THE COURT: Well, then you need to come
forward because the bottom line is, and I appreciate you
using the term coefced, but one of the things that I used
to tell my clients and I still believe this to be the
case, a lawyer, while it would be nice to tell you some
things that are good, a lawyer has an obiigation to tell
you what they believe to be reality and you make the call.

I told lots of people if it were me I
wouldn't take the chance, but it's your case. I bet
Mr. Sullivan told you this it's your case and if you want
to try it, I'll try it. 1I've had the pleasure of working
with Mr. Sullivan as a trial judge, I am confident he
could have tried that case without any problem and would
have done an excellent job. But the exposure is dramatic
and you minimize your exposure, but I'll be happy to hear
it. I've got the transcript and I'll hear the testimony
and make a decision on that.

So we probably need to go forward unless you
want to withdraw it. ‘

APPLICANT JENNINGS: -I just don't think that
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it's (inaudible) because I don't want to get-no more‘time
than I already got. | |

 THE COURT: Can't promise you that you will
and T can't prOmise you that you won't. Weire back

exactly where Mr. Sullivan was, it's our call. You have

to make the decision and that's why you have to convince

me that's what.you want to do. You've filed it and you've
alleged certain things and I looked at the'tran8cript |
briefly about‘it and I'11 continue to look at it and 11
hear your testimony. I don;t know what I'm going to do
but if I find that you were coerced and I find that the
plea was involuntary, then you start over again. |
So you make the call.
APPLICANT JENNINGS: (No response.)
THE COURT: Call‘your first witness.
MR. RICHEY: I call Mr.vJennings.
THE CLERK: Place your left hand on the'Bible
-and raise your right hand. | |
| | RANDY JENNINGS, having been duly sworn,
testified és follows: |
Thank you. You may be seated. Please’statg
your full name for the record. |
. THE WITNESS: Randy Aaron Jennings.
| DIRECT EXAMINATION - : .
BY MR. RICHEY:
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Q. Mr. Jennings, are you in the Department of
Corrections at this point?

A. Yes, sir, I am.

Q. You have to speak up.

A. Yes, sir, I am.

Q. And what are you in the Department of Corrections

for, what charges?

A. First degree burglary, grand larceny. I also had -

forgery charge?

Q. Who represented you on these charges?

A. Mr. Sullivan.

Q. And you filed an application for post conviction
relief in that you believe that Mr. Sullivan didn't
effectively present you; is that correct?

A. That's right.

Q. One of the issues is, as stated in your
preliminary discussion with the Court, is that
Mr. Sullivan coerced to plead guilty; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. And in wﬁat way are you alleging that he coerced
you to plead guilty®?

A. Mr. Sullivan told me -- he took me to the holding
cell and he told me that I would more than like, if this
were to come to trial, that the jury put in the box it was

a very very high chance that I would get a life sentence
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and that
Q.

I needed to plead out while I still had a chénce.

So the lawyer told you -- your case was on the

trial docket. Were you set to be tried?

A.
Q.

(No response.)

You were set to be tried on that day? Your case

at that point the solicitor had placed it on the trial

roster.
A.
Q.

correct?
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.

accurate.

Q.

It was on the roster to be tried, right?
Yes, sir.

And you had had a previous offer; is that

Yes, sir.

And what was that offer, do you remember?

It was 15 years. |

Was that td a reduced charge or something?

I believe so. I didn't feel like it was
It was too much.

At the plea itself there was some discussion in

court about the previous plea offer, correct?:

A.
0.

Excuse me?

There was some discussions about that previous

plea offer, correct?

A.
Q.

At the trial?
At the time of the plea. At the time you pled

guilty, do you recall Mr. Sullivan and you and the Court

talking about the previous offer that you had?
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A. No.
MS. RATIGAN: Could he speak up.
THE COURT: Yes. Speak into that mic, I'm
having trouble hearing you.
BY MR. RICHEY:

Q. It's your position that if Mr. Sullivan had not
coerced you to plead you would have gone to trial?

A. I really don't know how to answer that question.
Probably, but I feel that if Mr. Sullivan would have
adequately done his job, I would have never went to trial.

Q. It's your position that Mr. Sullivan would have |
had the charges dismissed or something? |

A. Not necessarily dismissed but lesser.

Q. You believe he didn't accurately represent you
because he didn't get you a more favorable plea offer; is
that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So at the time of your guilty plea because you
were on the spot, you feel like the plea was coerced
because of time than you think you should have gotten?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Thank you. Answer any question Ms. Ratigan may
have for you. | ‘

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. RATIGAN:
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Q. Did you meet with Mr. Sullivan to review the
facts of the charges against you?

A. I only met with Mr. Sullivan twice, once,waé at
my bond hearing when I was waiting for a bond,fandlthe
second time I can't recall. After that I never did meet

with him any more. I believe he was sick. Every time I

| came up for roll call, it was a solicitor who I spoke

with.
One timé I tried to'get into‘drug court and I

was denied. From there I just went to phone calls.

Q. Did you ever discuss the evidence against you
with your lawyer?

A. NQ, ma'am. I tried to»get a motion of discovery
frbm him and he told me I didn't need one.

Q. Did you tell him your version of what happened
with these charges? : | |

A. Yes, ma'am, when I was at the bond hearing when I
was in the county. I told to him about getting a bond.

Q. And did you at that-point tell him that you
wanted him to talk to the State about a plea offer?

A. I don't believe I did.

Q. So he just negotiated on'your behalf?

A. I just wanted a boﬁd. |

0. And the State did make a plea offer. Did

Mr. Sullivan explain that to you?
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A. -What do you mean?

Q. Well, youAhad a prior plea offer in this case,
correct, to reduce it down to second degree burglary.

"A. Apparently I did, but that was the first time I

went'up for roll call and T felt like I could get lesser
time. ' |

Q. Let me ask you a different way. When the State
made this offer to reduce the charge to burglary second,
is that something that Mr. Sullivan told you about?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And you thought that you'wanted a better offer;

is that correct?

A. I wanted less time,-yes,Ama'am.’

Q. That's what you told Mr. Sullivan I think it's
too much time?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Did he ever come back to you with a new offer
from the State?

A. No, mé'am. I had contacted his offiée numerous

times and was never able to get in touch with him. When

it did come up to trial, it turned out that he did receive

it.
Q. And when you were in court that déy to plead
guilty, you knew at that point there was no kind of

recommendation, no kind of plea offer?
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A. I'm not --—

Q.  When you came to Couft that day, you knew the
State wasn't going.to have a plea offer for you, you were
just coming to'pleéd'guilty.

A. The day of the trial?

Q. Yes, sir.
A. No, mé'ém. I didn't know what was going on. I
was lost. |
Q. So you didn't evén know you were pleading guilty
that day? | | _
A. No,-ma'am. “Just like I.am.now, I really don't

know what to say. I'm like‘a'deer in headlights I'm
scared to death. _
Q. When the judgé asked you if you had been Coerced

or pressured in any way, you told him that you had not.

‘Are you saying now that you were lying to the judge SO you

can just go ahead and plead?

A. Yes, ma'am, because I_felt it would be“in my best
interest because I ‘didn't want to’get a life sentence 1like
T do now. I'm scared to death and I think this is a bad
idea. ‘ N _

Q. And when you told the judge yon_were guilty, you
were also lying‘just.to try to get the plea over with? |

A. Yes, ma'am, I was scared of a life sentence.

'_Q.v Now, did Mr. Sullivan say to you you would
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receive a life sentence?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Or you could receive a life sentence?
A. He said I would. He said the Mr. Moyer was

pushing for a life sentence and it was likely I would get

it.

Q. Why didn't you tell Judge Stilwell that day that
you felt that Mr. Sullivan had kind of pressured you with
this talk of a life sentence?

A. I tried to fire Mr. Sullivan at the beginning the
process. I wanted another attorney and Judge Stilwell
told me that it was in his best interest -- Mr. Sullivan
was adequate and to go on with the trial.

Q. And that's why you didn't tell the judge you
thought that Mr. Sullivan was pressuring you?

A. Yes, ma'am, I was scared to death of getting a
life sentence as I am now.

MS. RATIGAN: That's all I have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any redirect?

MR. RICHEY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You may come down, sir. Thank
you.

MR. RICHEY: We call Mr. Sullivan.

THE CLERK: Mr. Sullivan, could you place

your left hand on the Bible and raise your right.
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C.. TIMOTHY SULLIVAN, having been duly’sworn,. :
testified as follows:
Thank you. You may be seated. Please State
your full name for the record.
THE ‘WITNESS: C. Timothy Sullivan.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. RICHEf:

Q. Mr. Sullivan, you represented Randy Jennings; is
that correct? |

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And you were in the courtroom during his
testimony; is that correct? |

A. Yes.

Q. And you understand is the issue that he's raising
is that you coerced him to plead guilty. Can you tell me
any explanation that you would have for him thinking that
you coerced him to plead guilty?

A. I don't tell people =— I tell them what they'fe
ranges are. He and I went over the discovery. He knew

what they had. There was a gun involved, pawn shop

‘tickets and they had cases on him. He had burglary first,

grand larceny, a'forgery. He had a bucket load of stuff
and he knew what and I told him that Mark offered a.
burglary second.

Q. When you say Mark, who are you referring to?
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A. Mark Moyér, the solicitor. Burglary second and
the rest of it would run concurreht -— burglary second
would carry 0O to 15. Randy was already on probation. He
had just gotten out of jail two months before this
happened and.the'first time I met with him and he gave me
a story. And then I got the discovery and it just didn't
jive. I told him the ranges, burglary first minimum of 15
to life. It's not a LWOP and the others were 10 or 5 or
whatever. I never told him that he was going to get a
life sentence. I told him that he was exposed to one but
there was nobody injured. I think he kicked in a trailer
door and took a some jewelry or something like that.
Nobody was - home in the trailer.

I told him that you could because it was 15
to life and burglary second is 0 to 15 and everything else
falls in place concurrent. I was sick at that time and I
had some cancer problems.

I don't how the time got by but Mark withdrew
the offer. In the transcript, I think Page 13, you can
see where there was a discussion betweeq Randy and the
Judge and I about théy would not re-instate the offer.

Q. Thank you. Answer any guestions Mr. Ratigan has.

CROSS~-EXAMINATION
BY MS. RATIGAN:

Q. Mr. Sullivan, you were appointed in this case?
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A. Yes, I was.
Q. You filed the usual discovery motions?
A. Yes. I have a file and I think they have it right
now in the courtroom.'
Q. Do you need your file?
‘A. Yes. I would like to look at it.
MS. RATIGAN: May I approéch; Your Honor.
THE COURT: You may.
BY MS. RATIGAN:
Q. Mr. Sullivan, does your.file reflect that you
recéived.discovery from the State?

A. I got the discovery with the descfiption of all

the things that were missing, the pawn shops they went to.

There were two places they went to try and sell the gun
according to the discovery and Randy knew all of that.
You don't go to trial without going over discovery with
your.client.

The time passed for the offer to be acdepted
and the policy here is if you don't accept within the time
limit, it goes on the trial docket. If you want to then
pleé, it's straight up to the regular charge. You can not
go back to the offer.

Q. The offer wasn't for a specific time. It was to
reduce it down to a burglary second.

A. Burglary second and Mark was going to push for
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the higher end and let me argue what I could?

Q. And you explained to Mr. Jennings that there was
no specific time recommendation but that the State was
going to push for the max?

A. Yes, I told them they were going to try for the
15 and I would argue for lower than that but I couldn't
guarantee it.

Q. And did you_éxplain to Mr. Jennings the minimum
and maximum for both the burglary second and burglary
first? |

A. Yes. Burglary second 0 to 15 mandatory and
burglary first mandatory 15 up to life. I didn't think
he'd get life on this because of no injuries, nobody home.

Q. And'once Mr. Jennings rejected the offer.it got

put on the trial docket?

A. It got put on the trial docket. I don't remember

why the time went by. I do know I was sick and I do know

he didn't accept it.
- Q. So when he went to plead before Jﬁdge Stilwell,
it was straight up with no recommendation?
A. Yes. If it goes on the trial docket, it's a

straight up plea with the original charge.

Q. Did you explain to Mr. Jennings when he went to
court that day to plead guilty there would not be a

recommendation?
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A. This was not. to pleadvguilty, this was a .trial.
I.éven had him clothes. They keep a wardrobe, John '
Mauldin,  to keep clothes for people that don't have them.
We were going to pick a jury that day. ‘ |

MS. RATIGAN: That's ali I have, Your Honor. -

THE COURT: Redirect? '

‘MR. RICHEY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  You can stép down.

MR. RICHEY: That's all. the witresses we
have, Your Honor. .

THE COURT: State has any witnesses.

MS. RATIGAN: The. State would rest on the
record, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Richey.

MR. RICHEY: Your Honor, I think the Court

' has heard the testimony and I'll let the Court weigh it iﬁ

its ruling. ,
MS. RATIGAN: And we would rest on.the record
and Staté Stickling has not beén met,  Your anor.

- THE COURT: Well, in reviewing the trahscript
it's clear that Mr. Jennings'Was very reluctant to plead
guilty. I don't fault Judge Stilwell, I think there was
an abundance of evidénce and the_whdle proceeding in it's.
totality justified his taking and accepting the plea.

I just probably_wouid not have accepted it
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and you would have gone to trial that day and faced what a
jury would have said and faced a sentence that would have
exposed him to that which he has said prior to and again

on the witness stand what he didn't want to run the risk

of.

But clearly he admitted he was guilty by
acknowledging the facts that was stating in the record.
So notwithstanding his statements and discussions and
equivocations, I find that he entered a plea voluntarily,

knowingly and intelligently. With his prior record, I am

certain that he understood what he was doing. I think the

Judge even acknowledged that and commented about that in

the record.

Clearly it seems to be the theme of the day

because the applicant before rejected an offer thinking he

could get a better deal. In a lot of way it's gambling in

waiting for the decision because the Court has not decided
and gambling is not aliowed in this state but you gamble
every day when you come in general sessions. You take a’
chance. The gambling, unfortunately, the stakes are
pretty high.

' You gambled that you could get a better deal
and that was not a good move. Hindsight is 20/20 but I
don't think that's an indication that Mr. Sullivan did

anything wrong or failed to do anything. He succinctly

[
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stated the problems and Mr. Jennings was aware of the
problems. Mr. Jennings, in reading those comments, was
aware of those problems and understood the risk.

Quite frankly with your record, you were very
aware of those problems created with respect to |
sentencing. All of us do. I can only speak for me, I
don't know about anybody else, but I know that I do.. I
look at everybody;s pribr records ahd I understand the
drug issues but by the same token 1f you've had as many‘f
shots as you’ve-had, it could have been a life sentence.

| I don't disagree with your lawyer's
aésessment.' I don't fhink he told you that you were going
to get it. I think he told you that you very well could:
but given everything you probably Wouldn‘t, and that's
consistent with everything that I read in the record.
It's consistent with what I read in the record and.
consistent with what he told you and what he accomplished
even though 15 under the first is not the same as 15 under
the second. That's where you may have mad a big mistaken
but it's not your lawyer's fault and you can't blame him
for that because he can't accept it for you. That's not
permitted. You have to accept it or reject it.

Nothing wrong with the State. They made an
offer and just as Mr. Sullivan articulated and that's the

case with every case manager in the State. You get an
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offer, it's extended, you have an opportunity to consider
it and if you are put on the trial docket then that offer
is rejected. .

, Now, sometimes there may be occasioﬁ where
they change. I'm not going to tell you that doesn't
happen, but that's up to the individual solicitor. So I'm
going to protect you against yourself. I'm going to deny
your application. I don't think it has met the prongs and
if Ms. Ratigaﬁ you would prepare the.order.

MS. RATIGAN: - Yes, Your Honor.
———END OF TRANSCRIPT RECORD---
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I, the undersigned Caroline Hiskell, Official
Court Reporter for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit of the
Sfate of South Carolina, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true,'accurate, and complete transcript of
reéord of all the proceedings had and evidence introduced
in the trial of the captibned'case, relative to appeal, in
the Court of Common Pleas, Greenville, South Carolina on
the 30th day of October, 2012.

I do further certify that I am neither of

kih,_counsel, nor interest to any party hereto.

sl |

Caroline Hiskell
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
) C.A. No. 2011-CP-23-1291
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) '
' - )
Randy Erin Jennings, ) ~ .
S.C.D.C. No. 259845, ) S
| ) B
Applicant, ) ‘ T eER
) ORDER OF DISMISSAL ¢ &2
v ) » 229
State of South Carolina, =) — 375
) W “
Respondent. . ) )
)

~ This matter comes before the Court by way of an application for post-conviction relief
(PCR) filed Februar.y 21, 2011. The Respondent made its return on May 26, 2011. An
evidentiary hearing into the matter was convened on October 31, 2012 at the Greenville County
Courthouse. The Applicant was present at the hearing and represented-by Rodney W. Richey,
Esquire. Karen C. Ratigan, Esquire of the South Carolina Office of the Attorney General
represented the Respondent.

The Applicant testified on his own behalf at the PCR hearing. Also testifying was the
Applicant’s pleé counsel, C. Timothy Sullivan, Esquire. The Court had before it the transcript of
the guilty plea héaring, the records of the Greenville County Clerk of Court, the Applicant’s
records from the South CarolinaDepartmenf of Corrections, the application for post-conviction
reiief, and the Respondcnt"s'retum. |

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The Applicant is confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to
orders ‘of commitment from the Greenville County Clerk of Court. The Applicant was indicted
at the July 2009 term of the Greenville County Grand Jury for grand larceny, third or greater

1

\!r

81



82

prbperty‘.offense (2009-.GS-2.3-2422); first-degree burglary (2009-GS-23-2423), and two counts
of forgery, value less than $5000 (2009-GS-23-3620, counts 1 and 2)., C. Timothy Sullivan,.
Esquire representcd the Applicant. |

On March 3, 2010, the Applicant p]ed guilty as indicted. The Honorable Robm B.
Stilwell sentenced the Applicant to concurrent terms of ten (10) years for grand larceny, third or
greater property offense, sixteen (16) years for first-degree burglary, and five (5) years for each
count of forgery, value less than $5000. The Applicant did not app{eal. |

ALLEGATIONS

In his application, the Applicant alleges he is being held in custody unlawfully for the

following reasons:

1. Ineffective assistance of counsel.
2, Involuntary guilty plea.
3. Malicious prosecution.

The Applicant, through counsel, submitted an amendment to his application dated

October 2, 2012, in which he alleged the following:

1. Ineffective assistance of counsel:
Failed to conscientiously discharge professxonal l‘eSpOnSIblhthS
Failed to effectively challenge search and seizure.
Failed to act as a diligent and conscientious advocate.
Failed to give complete loyalty.
Did not have Applicant’s best interest in mind.
" Failed to serve the cause in good faith.
Neglected necessary investigations and preparation.
Did not do necessary factual investigations.
Did not do necessary legal research,
Did not conscientiously gather information to protect rights.
Did not try to have the case settled in-a manner that would have
been to my best advantage.
Did not advise me of all my rights or take any- of the actions that
were necessary to protect and preserve them.
Never properly ascertained whether or not I actually understood or
comprehended all of the issues involved in the case.
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n. Never properly consulted with me or kept me informed.

Never explained to me or discussed with me any of the elements.

p- Never made any attempt to ascertain whether or not I actually
knew the elements of the crime change or whether or not I
understood exactly what “criminal element” meant.

q. Never explained or discussed with me how the elements of the
crime charged and the evidence that the prosecution planned to
introduce into evidence against me related to one another and did
not discuss how the sentencing would be done especially as it
related to the elements of the crime as in State v. Boyd.

e

I Never informed me of any of the defenses that were available to
me.
S. Never intended to offer any defense to the court on my behaif.
t. Never explained to me or discussed with me any kind of defense
strategy.
u. Never explained to me or discussed with me any of the tactical
choices that were made or planned to be made.
v. Dictated to me exactly how my case was going to be handled and
' offered no alternative options.
w. Failed to properly acquaint herself with the law and facts
; surrounding my- case and, as a result, there was a very serious error
in the assessment of both the law and the facts.
X. ‘No defense at all was put in issue for me during the Court
proceedings. .
y. Did not subject the prosecution’s case to any adversarial testing.
z. Failed to oppose the prosecution’s case with any adversarial
litigation.
aa. Failed to function as the government’s adversary in any sense of
the word.
bb.  Failed to pursue any of the legal recourse that was available.
cc. Failed to function as the counsel that the Constitution’s Sixth

Amendment guarantees.
dd.  Failed to call alibi witnesses on my behalf.
ee.  Failed to appeal my case.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

This Court has had the opportunity to review the record in its entirety and has heard the
testimony and arguments presented at the PCR hearing. This Court has further had the
opportunity to observe each witness who testified at the hearing, and to closely pass upon their

credibility. This Court has weighed the testimony accordingly.
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Set forth below are the relevant findings of fact and conclusions of law as required by

S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-80 (2003).

Ineffective Assistance of Counsel/Involuntary Guilty Plea

The Applicant alleges his guilty plea was involuntary and that he received inefféctiye
assistance of counsel. In a PCR actidn, “[t]he bur,den of prpé)f is on the applicant to prove his
allegations by a preponderahce of &e evidence.” Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. 385, 389, 570 S.E.2d
172, 174 (2002).

For an applicant to be granted PCR as a resu.lt of ineffective assistance of counsel, he
must show both: (i) that his counsel failed to render reasonably.cffcctive assistance under

prevailing professional norms; and (2) that he was prejudiced by his counsel’s ineffective

performance. See Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 2052 (1984); Porter v.
State, 368 S.C. 378, 383, 629 S.E.2d 353;. 356 (2006). When ihere has been a guilty pléa, the
applicant must prove that counsel’s_representation was below the standard of reasonableness and
that, but for couhsel’s unprofessional errors, there is a.reasonable probability that he would not

have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 58-59,

106 S. Ct. 366, 370 (1985).

To be knowing and voluntary, a plea must be entered with a full understanding of the

charges and the consequences of the plea. Boykin v. AlaBéma, 395 U.S. 238, 243-44, 89 S. Ct.

1709, 1712 (1969); Dover v. State, 304 S.C. 433, 434, 405 S.E.2d 391, 392 (1991). When

determining issues relating to guilty pleas, the court will consider the entire record, including the

transcript of the guilty plea, and the evidence presented at the post-conviction relief hearing.

Anderson v. State, 342 S.C. 54, 57, 535 S.E.2d 649, 657 (2000) (citing Harres v. Leeke, 282 S.C.
131, 318 S.E.2d 360 (1984)). |



The Applicant stated he only had two meetings with plea counsel and they never
reviewed the evidence in his case. The Applicant stated plea counsel conveyed a fifteen year
plea offer from the State ‘but that he rejected it because he wanted a lesser sentence. The
Applicant stated if plea counsel had done a better job, he would have received a better offer from
the State. The Applicant stated plea counsel coerced him into pleading guilty because counsel
stated he wbuld receive a life sentence if he was found guilty at trial. The Applicant stated he
lied to the plea judge when he said he had not been coerced and was guilty of the charges.

Plea counsel testified he filed discovery motions, received those materials from the State,
and reviewed the State’s evidence with the Applicant. Plea counsel testified he reviewe& the
sentence ranges for the charges and the lesser-included offenses of those charges. Plea counsel
testified the State made an offer to reduce the charge to second-degree burglary and recommend
concurrent time but did not make a specific sentence r.ecommendation. Plea counsel testified he

explained the plea offer to the Applicant, the Applicant rejected it, and the case was put on the

‘trial docket. Plea counsel testified the Applicant knew he was pleading guilty that déy without a

p?

plea offer or recommendation. Plea cbunsel testified he never told the Applicant he would
receive a life sentence at trial but did advise him the maximum sentence for first-degree burglary
was life imprisonment.

Regarding the Appliéant’s claims of ineffective assistance of counsel, this Court finds the
Applicant has failed to meet his burden of proof. This Court finds the Applicant’s testimony is
not credible, while also finding plea counsel’s testimony is credible. This Court further finds
plea counsel adequately conferred with the Applicant, conducted a proper investigation, and was

thoroughly competent in his representation.

The Applicant admitted to the plea judge both that he was guilty and that the majority of

5
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“ the facts recited by the solicitor were true. (Plea transcript, p.8; p.18). The Applicant also told

the plea judge that he understood the trial rights he was waiving in pleading guilty and had not
been coerced in any way. (Plea transcript, pp.4-5; pp.7-8).

This Court finds the Applicant failed to meet his burden of proving plea counsel’s

representation was deficient.. Plea counsel testified he reviewed the discovery materials, the

Applicant’s version of events, and the possible'sentences with the Applicant. This Court finds
plea counsel’s testimony on this matter is credible. Both plea counsel and the Applicant testified

plea counsel conveyed the plea offer and the Applicant chose to reject it because he wanted a

better recommendation. Plea counsel testified he discussed the offer with the Applicant and

explained the sentence range for the reduced chargé of second-degree burglary. This Court finds
plea counsel fulfilled his obiigatio-n to convey and discuss the plea offer and the Applicant made
an informed decision to teject it. Cf, Davie v. State, 381 S.C. 601, 675 S.E.2d 416 (2009)
(holding counsel’s failure to convey the State’s plea offer to defendant constituted deficient
perforfnance). This Court further finds there was no error in plea counsel advising the Applicant
he could receive a life sentence if found guilty of first-degree burglary because this was the

maximum sentence for the charge. See Pittman v, State, 337 S.C. 597, 599, 524 S.E.2d 623, 624

(1999) (finding that, before a defendant can enter a guilty plea, he “must be aware of the nature
and crucial elements of the offense, the maximum and any mandatory minimum penalty, and the
nature of the constitutional rights being waived”).

This Court finds the Applicant failed\to meet his burden of proving his guilty plea was

involumary.. This Court finds that, while the plea transcript indicates the Applicant’s reluctance

to plead guilty; nevertheless, the guilty plea collbquy was thorough and the Applicant’s guilty

plea was entered knowingly and voluntarily. See Boykin v. Alabama, 395 U.S. at 243-44, 89 S.

6
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- Ct. at 1712; see also Stalk v. State, 375 S.C. 289, 300, 652 S.E.2d 402, 407 (Ct. App. 2007)

(finding the Applicant’s allegations were refuted by the guilty plea transcript).

Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has failed to prove the first prong of the
Strickland test — that plea counsel failed to render reasonably effective assistance under
prevailing professional-nonns. The Applicant failed to present specific and compelling evidence
that plea counsel committed either errors or omissions in his representation of the Applicant.
This Court also finds the Applicant has failed to prove the second prong of Strickland — that he
was ﬁrejudiced by plea counsel’s performance.

This Court concludes the Applicant has not met his burden of provﬁig counsel failed to
render reasonably effective assistance. This Court also concludes the Applicant has failed to
meet his burden of proving his guilty plea was not knowing and voluntary. See Frasier v. State,
351 S.C. at 389, 570 S.E.2d at 174.

All Other Allegations

As to any and all allegations that were raised in the application or at the hearing in,this
matter and not specifically addressed in this Order, this Court finds the Applicant failed to
present any 'evidt;nce regarding such allegations. Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant
waived such allegations and failed to meet his burden of proof regarding them. Th‘ereforc,. they
are hereby denied and dismissed:

CONCLUSION

Based on all‘the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes the Applicant has not
established any constitutional violations or deprivationé before or during his guilty plea and
sentencing proceedings. Counsel was not deficient in any manner and the Applicant was not
prejudiced by counsel’s representation. Furthermore, the Applicant’s guilty plea was entered

7
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knowingly and voluntarily within the mandates of Boykin. Therefore, this PCR application must
be denied and dismissed with prejudice.

This Court advises the Applicant that he must file a notice of intent to appeal within thirty
(30) days from the receipt of this Order if he wants to secure appropriate appellate review. His
attention is also directed to Rules 203, 206, and 243 of the South Carolina Appeilate Court Rules
for bthe appropriate procedures to follow after noticg of intent to appeal ﬁas been timely filed.

IT IS THEREFQORE ORDERED:

1. _That the application for post-conviction relief be denied and -
dismissed with prejudice; and :

2. Thatthe Applicant be remanded to the custody of the Respondent.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this _19) _day of Nofeinbek: , 2012.

Presiding Judge

Molcks Covnexr , South Carolina.
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QLINA
Mumo ality of
AT _/Cu
THE STATE 08-157811

against

Randy Erin Jennings

Address:

Phone: SSN:
Sex. M Racet W  Height 5 ighl’

Ot State: oLw : -

oQe: Agency ORI # SC0230000
Prosecuting Agency.  Greenville County Sheri(fs Office
Plasecuing Office. R B Ballerger- 502

Offense: Burglary / Burglary (Aﬁer June 20, 1985) - Virst

Form ADOve) Oy

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA OlRIGINAL

. '8.C, Anomay Geners!
K] Countyr 7] Municialy o ) AFFIDAVIT , e
Greenville _ 4 ) o

Personally appeared before me the atiant R B Ballenoer : who

being duly swom deposes end says kal defendsnt  Randy Erin Jennings
did wihin wis county and siale on oratowt  10/3072008
State of ‘Sowh Carolina {or ordinance of County/

in Ihe following particulars:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE  Ryrplury / Burglary (After Junc 20, 1985) - First degree

violale the criminal laws of he

Greenville : - )

D Municipality of

) furket slale that (here i3 probable csuse lo belleve that the defendanl ~named above did commul

. the cime sel forth and that probable cause is based on the following facts:

AfViant has a report of a Btirglary 15t Degree which took place at -m- where the Victim. Serub Cartee, reported
the unlawtul entry to her residenee aud the theft of property, which ineluded a Browning .22 Rifle, Serial #3171492 and a Safe.
The defendon is implicated a3 a panty to this critne and he became armed with a gur during this burglary. A Wilness ideatified the
defendant as the persos who trded the gun the same day us the thefl took place. The defendant was alse idenlified, by his state
iduntification card. when he sold a portion of the Victim's stolen property 10 Foothills Gun and Pawn Shop. within 24 hours ¢l the
thelt. This incident took place ih Greenville Coursity.

degree )
Otiense Code: 0079. )
Code/Ordinance Sec:  16-11-031 ) -
l, Signature of Affiant _.Q Y\Z w
This warsnl #  CERTIFIED —FOR ™ SERVICE 7 —(Fe

D County/

D Municipality ol

The dccused
is lo be amesied and brought before e lo be
deall with according io Ihe law.

!
! (L.S.)
Siaratue of Jusge -
Date:
RETURN )
A-copy of lhis arres! wamant was delwered to
delendant . ,/_| e oS

on

///a/Q.P Y

YAaNg e

RETURN WARRANT TO;

© West Grcenvnlle Summarv Coug 7
6247 White Horsc Roud;
Greenville, SC 29(1 g, e

<O

';'.‘u.
el

.
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ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

Greenville

E Coumy/

ORIGINAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

E County/ D Municipatily of

4900 Old Butncowibe Road
Greenville, SC 2961 7-
Affiant's Telephone  (R64)371-3619

Affiant's Agdress

i

ARREST WARRANT

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THISV COUNTY:

It appeanng fom the abave affidavit that there are - reasonable grounds 1o  believe that

on orabout  10/30/2008 . defendant Randy Erin Jennig® o .

did wviclate the criminal laws of the State of South .Carolina (o ordinence of WAL [" I ?' H
[ Municipatyof  Greenville ) a5 Sef 16t e'EN TERE

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Durglary / Burglary {After Jund 20, 15)85) - First degree {]DV U

Having found probable cause and the above aMant having swom belore me, you are empowered agg diecled (o arrest 1hd&0a8»1endan. and bring him or
her before me {orihwit 1o be deall with according (o law. A copy of this Atrest Warrant shail be deli¢s Qf flpﬂ”fndam at the ume of is execution, o as

ssog\nl‘h&rﬁt:’e;jgszr&gglbcgg; me ) S H fn ! c r~ OCFO UN T
on infp) F
L1/032008 ) Judge's Address 6247 White Horse Road ICE
) Greenville, SC 29611-3843
) Judge's Telephone (864)294-48 10
Judge Coda: 5531 ) Issuing Caurt: Magislcate D Municipal D Circuit
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL



o A 7 ARRESTWARRANT [‘jgﬁ "i- STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) : ORIGINAL ooty

/’-f X county (] Municipality of ) CAEFIDAVIT .Zfﬁ:f?ﬁw""
51 L’lﬁ ) | .

-Greenville

UTHCAROUNA _'3 {

Personally appeared. before me tne affiant R°B Ballenger o . o who
Mummpahky of ‘;’4 - [ ) - - " g
/ a4 being ouly swom ceposes and says that defendan! ~ Randy Erin Jennings .
" did within -this county and slate on orabowt  {(0/30/2008 violate the criminal laws of the
: : State of Scuth Carolina {or ordinende of ~ County/ || Municipality of Greenville — )
THE STATE 08-157811 in_the following particulars: : v .
' ) against : . . - ) .
. . . . DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE sony /£ G 'y .
Randy Erin Jennings » _ Larceny / Grand Larceny, value more than $1,000 but less than $5,000
Address: : F : .
: . - ' | futher state thal there Iis prokable cause to believe that he oefendan: named above did commll
Phone: __ SSN: the cime set forth and thal probable cause 15 based on the - following facis:
Sex: Race. . W " Height: 5 : ) . ; . .
- Sex: i W . Hewft 5 160 Affiant bas a report of a Grand Larceny which took place a1 m SC. 29673 where the Victim, Serah
i OL State:  OL# . Cartec, reported the thelt of property. valued preater than $1000. The defendant ts implicated as a party to Lhis crime because a
j bos: Agency ORI $C0230000, Witness identified in as (e person who traded some of the victin's property the same day as the thelt took place: The defendant
Proseculing Agency:  Greenville County Sheriffs Oflice was also identified, by lus stae idemification card, when he sold a ponion of 1he Victim's slolen property to Foothills Gun and
: Prosecuting Officer: R B3 Rallenger - 502 Pawn Shop. within 24 hours ol the thelt. This incident took place in Greenvitle County.
Ottense: Larceny / Grrand Larceny, value more than S1 000 i
but less than $5,000. |
Offense Code.’ 0478

Cose/Ordinance Sec:  16-13-0030(BX1) , ' ' . : Q
- o . . - . Signature of Affiant ‘,_Q [, 3 bgs gg la /-\

This  wamam 15 CEME e -
- STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
[] coumy ~ D_M_umcpaftv of . K] Couny (] muricraity o ; Affian{s Address - 4900 Old Buncombe Road
, . The accused . ) Greenville, SC 29617-
5 to be amesed and bmught before me  -lo be Greenville Affiant's Telephone  {864)371-3619
deall with ‘according lo the law. : - : ’ d
_ ©s) ARREST WARRANT
Sighatxe of Juoge . :
Date: : . ' TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITYOR ANY coﬁs@ﬁl?pP _COUNTY: :
: . appeaﬂng fom the above affidavit that there are rea F;;rtmlis'ﬁu believe  that’
RETURN A , . ~ E _
A opy of tis smest wariant was delvered o s on orabout 10/30/2008 defendarit Randy Erin Jehnings 24
osfendant / J did violate the cnminal laws of the Siate of South Carolina (or ordinance of WYY 9 2008
¥ O/‘z Tumlin w g E County! D Mumqpalﬂyaf Greenville BS sel forth below:

/' JO/PV

‘ - DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: . Larceny / Grand Larccny, vatue more than §1, 000 but lc;s @H E‘RMLE Couy Ty
%a ~ 4,_ ,1 o /e - s s Havmg lound probable cause and the above afflant having swom befure me, you aze emacwered and direeted to arrest the QFglc-Eam and bring him or
Tenaiuic Ufcoﬂs':‘hﬁilvl oreem herf belore me forthwith {o be dealt with according to law. A copy of this Arrest Warrant shall be delivered to the defendant at the time of its execulion, or as
/ soon thereatier as is practcablie

RETURN WARRANT TO: . - ::vom to and r;h?.scnbed befoW
Wost Grcenv;léc Summary Court . . 13008 _
- 6247 White FHorsgRoad ' P :
Gmm)nll,c SC29611 ¢

)

) -Judge's Address 6247 White Horse Road -
) Greenvitle, SC 29611-3845
)
)

Judge's Telephone  (864)294-4810

s .1,(, 'dncD Cagle :
s i '~> . Judge Code: 5331 ‘Issuing Court: E Magisirate D Municipal D Circuit
= ORIGINAL " ORIGINAL ORIGINAL " ORIGINAL ORIGINAL " ORIGINAL  ORIGINAL
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ARHEb v WARNANT

037

S/ /é 0
L477138
. STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
VC'ounlyI D Municipality of
Greenville ' ; ;
l THE STATE 08174152
agains! ’

Randy Erin Jennings

Address: ’ _ L

Phone: SSN.

Sec M Roce: W Height §
DL State: “oLm
DO8:

Agency ORI £ SC02350000
Proseculing Agency:  Greenville (_ou aty Sherifls Office
Praseculing Officer; J T Martin - 0224

Otiense: Forgery / Forgery, value less than $5,000

Offense Code: 2427 ; .
CodefQrdinance Sec:  |6-13-0010(B)2) .
Tris™ warranl s CERHmeCE . The
D County/ D Musiicipality of
. The sccused
$ to be amvested and bmugm before  me to be
dest with according 1o fhe law. '
j (LS
Sianatre of Judae .
Date.
RETURN

A copy of this amest warrant was delivered to

- delendant ,67,\4 v 3‘:,-‘/\-"-{/(
won . A/)Y/ﬂ '

RETURN WARRANT 1O
City Magistrate 2
, 4 Mc Gee Strect Room | 16 B
Grccnvnlle, SC 29601

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

STATE OF SQULF CAROLINA ) ORIGINAL 5 ey Genecs
, 209
K] Coum ] muncipainy o ) AFFIDAVIT PR
Greenville ' ). :
Personally appeared before me the offisnt - JT Marlin who

being . duly swom ‘deposes and says that defendant Randy Erin Jenmngs
did within this county and stale on oratout  10/22/2008
State of South Carolina for ordinance of . [X] Countyl

in the foliowing particutars:

DESCRIPTION QF OFFENSE Forgcry / Forgcry, value fess than 55,(]00

violale ihe cnminal laws of tha

)

D Municipaiity of Greenville

1 further state that there s probable ' cause to  believe that the defendant
the crime sel fordh and that probahle cause is based on the foliowing  lacts:

AFFIANT HAS EVIDENCE IMPLICATING DEFENDANT IN THIS CRIME, AFFIANT HAS A STATEMENT FROM
VICTIM IMPLICATING DEFENDANT. DEFENDANT DI TAKE CHECK#236,3B&T ACCT4 5125517244, AND MADE I:T
"PAYABLE TO JIIMSELF AND CASHED IT AT BB&T BANK LOCATED IN GREENVILLE COUNTY. THE AMOUNT OF
‘THIS CHECK WAS $100.00

named abave did commil

Signature of Affiant

STATE OF SCUTH CAROLINA
@ Oounry! D Municipalty ot

Greenville

) Affiants A@Mcgee Street

. ) Greenviile, SC29601-
Affiant's Tetephone (864)271-5210

bj .

OF mtk 3 COUNTY:
Cng;onab\e sgrauads  to  believe  that

ARREST WARRANT

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFlCER OF THIS.STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY C%T
it appeaing from the above affidavit thal lhcl%‘%

" /7
R

on arabout  10/22/2008 defendant Rand\' Erin Jennings % 9 4, '\‘,. ,—3« .
did violate the ciminal laws of the Siate of South Carolina (or ordinance of o~ Ce
E County! - D Municipalily of Greenville ) a5 set farih below:
' PAY ‘

()
s
K

”
RS

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Forgery / Fargery, valuc less than 55,000

Having found probable cause and the above' athant having swom before me, you ara empowared and direcied 1o arest the said defandanl and bring him or
her belore me lorthwith 1o ba dealt with according to law. A copy of this Arfest Warrant shall be delivered to the defendant at the Gme of its execution, of as
800N (herealler as is practcatie

Sworn to and subscribed belgre me

. : n ;'7 : .
on 120242008 % o M bl ')"Juuge's Address 4 Mcgee Street, Room 116-B
mi{é &; — (Lsy ) Greenville, SC 29601-
Craif b Tauiy Judga T ennd 5y Judge's Telephone  (8641467-5302
JameME. Hudson ” ] oo
Judge Coda® 5031 ) Issuing Court: Magistrate D Municipal D Circuit
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL " ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL




nRth f WARRANT

:477139

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

5037
/7€ 09

Counryf_ D Municipality of
Greenville - )
THE STATE 08174152
against

Randy Erin Jennings ‘ -
Aadress: . m

Phane: . .
Sex M Raca w Height: S Weight: 150

oL Site ol NERENEN
008: ﬂ'___ Agericy ORI SC0230000

Prosecuting Agency:  Greenville County Sheriffs Office
Prosecunng Officer.  J T Martin £ 0224
Otiense: Forgery / Forgery, value less than $3.000

" Offensg Codé: 2427 )
Code/Ordinance Sec:  16~13-0010(B)}(2)
Nis_wartamt 15 ; : v —i T

[] Cowntyr  [] Municipatey of

. The atcused

is to be amesled and brought before me to be
deatl with accarding o the law.
{Ls)
siqnnmldew:!ge
Date: '
RETUR‘N

A copy of this armest waitant w:;xs delivered to

defendant M; Faeed S
on S
o0 : narf {?uofw
RETURN WARRANT TO:
City Magistrate 2

4 Mc¢ Gee Sirect Room 1l16-B
Gn.enwlle SC 29601

ORIG INAL ORIGINAL

‘ORIGINAL

o™ Approvea by

STATE GF SOUTH CAROLINA ) - ] o ORIGINAL Py i
K] vounty. 7] munciay of ) ) AFFIDAVIT _ privaa
Greenville ) ' '

Personally appeared before me the afant J T Maitin. . . o who
beiﬁg duiy- swom deposes and says thal defendant Randy Erin Jennmgs

did within this couny and stale on orabout [(0/17/2008 violate the cnminal laws of the

State of South Carvlina {or orginance. of
in {he following particulars:

County/ [ ] Munictpality of - Greenville s}

-DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE pigroery / Forpery, value less than $5,000

! futher state that there s .probable cause 10 believe thet the defendsnt named above did  commit
the oime sel forlh and that probable cause is based on the hllowh_'\g facts:

AFFIANT HAS EVIDENCE IMPLICATING DEFENDANT IN TUIS CRIME.. AFFIANT HAS A STATEMENT FROM
VICTIM IMPLICATING DEFENDANT. DEFENDANT DID TAKE CHECK#22|,BB&T ACCT# 5125517244, AND MADE IT
PAYABLE TO HIMSELF AND CASHED [T AT BB&T BANK LOCATED IN GREENVILLE COUNTY. THE AMOUNT OF
THIS CHECK WAS $150.00

Signature of Affiant .
STATE OF SOUTH CARDLINA . @ e .
: County/ Municipality of Affiant! C ¢
[k ] oyt [ ] unipatly o ; — Greenville, SC 20601-
Greanville Affiant's Telepnone  (864)271-5210

ARREST WARRAP{DO
TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANYRDNSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY: A
] appeanng wom the above amdam! , that olhefeuf/are reasonable  grounds 1o  believe that

on arsbout  10/17/2008 defendant Rand%%;,)eng has

did violate the criminal laws of the Siste of South Cerciina (or ordma% o /.

E County/ D Mumclpalltyot Greenville . ‘5‘(\‘.‘«__ <. ) essetforth below:
o

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Forgery / Forgery, value less than §5,000 e . A

a"

Having-lound probablﬂ cause and the above affiant having swom before me, you are empowered and directed to aml the said defendant and bnng him or
her before me forthwith to be dealt with according to law. Acopy.al this Arresl Wanan! shall be defivered 1o the defendsnt at the time of its execution, or a8
soon thereaftar as is practicable

Swarn 1o and subscribed before me )

on' 12/24/2008. - . . O Loayd

. 'Judge'"s' Address
tgnatia tung Judge
Janies 3 fludson

Judge Code: 5031

4 Mcgee Street, Room 116-!?

Greenville, SC 29601-

A, “Judge's Telephone  (864)467-5302 .
] Municipal

i ‘v
Magistrale

!ssulr\g _Courl
ORIGINAL - ORIGINAL -

[] cireui

ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL
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A . DOCKET NO. 2009-GS-23-
_ \/‘Nf WITNESSES LMM [} N
) / The State of South Carohna.
R. B. Baﬂenger < ‘ , County of Greenville
Greenville County Sheriffs Ofﬁbe COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
11/30/2008 ; July
THE STATE
: vs.
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER RANDY ERIN JENNINGS
1368450
ACT
’i‘ﬁﬁ’ﬁ"ﬁﬁL
Foreperson of Grand Jury
VERDIC:T / Indictment for
0079
E— * BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE

VIOLATION § 16-11-0311

Date:

Foreperson of Petit Jury




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) | INDICTMENT-FOR
. | | * * BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE .
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) RO

Ata Co,ulrt 6( General Sessions, cor;vcncd an ' JUL 2 8 2009 the Grand Jurors ;)f Gyeenvillé
County present upon their oath: . | |

That RANDY ERIN JENNINGS did iﬁ Greenville County, on bor ab:out the 30th day of Octqber,"ZOOS, willﬁxlly
and unlawfully coter the dwelling of SERAH CARTEE located at ] ] —, South

Carolina, without consent and with the intent to commit a crime thercin and while armed with a deadly weapon.

This is in violation of §16-11-0311 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the pcace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the slalute in such case made and provided.
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QJ"UJ WITNESSES

R B Ballenger :

Greenville County Sheriffs Office

DOCKET NO. 2009-GS-23-002422 -

LMM

/ The State of South Carolina

County of Greenville

11/30/2008

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

July  TERMa

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
1368451

TROEHY

\ / {ICL/ \.LLW
|

™ FOREMAN GRAND JURY

Foreperson of Grand Jury .

VERDICT

THE STATE

VS.

RANDY ERIN JENNINGS

Foreperson of Petit Jury | T Date:

"

v Indictment for
2367
GRAND LARCENY
Bfﬂ PROPERTY OFFENSE

VIOLATION § 16-13-0030 and §16-1-0057
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) . INDICTMENT FOR
‘ ) .+ GRAND LARCENY
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) . 34 PROPERTY OFFENSE
Ata Court of General Sessions, convened on JUL 28 Zﬂﬂg‘ the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upon their oath:

_ That RANDY ERIN JENNINGS did in Greenville County, on or about the 30th day of Obtober, 2008, having previously been

convicted of at least two offenses for which the term of imprisonment is c.,on‘lingent upon the value of the properly involved,
fetoniously take and carry away the personal property of SERAH CARTEE of the value of more than Five Thousand Dallars
described as_follows: Flrearm knife, safe, camera, andlor )ewelry, with intent to deprive the owner permanently of such

property. Thls is in violation of §16- 13 0030 and § 16-1-0057 of the South Carolina Code of Laws {1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in sugh case made and provided,

,M,;

/7 Sou,érror{
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‘ WITNESSES

John Martin %—F

Greenvme County Sherlffs Office

DOCKET NO. 2009-GS-23- A
MM L'L.\n:,u

\/ The State of South Carolina

County of Greenville

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
- 12/24/2008 J u"y TERM 2008
THE STATE
VS,
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER RANDY ERIN JENNINGS
1477138 and 1477139 :
AT RERBTYLL
) . A
Foreperson of Grand Jury :
VERDICT J Indictment for
2427
FORGERY

Foreperson of Petit Jury

" Date:

VIOLATION §16-13-0010
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ¢ INDICTMENT FOR

. ,FORGERY '
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )
) the Grand Jurors of Greenville

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on JUL 28 2008 -
County present upon.their oath: B |
| COUNTT

That RANDY ERIN JENNINGS did in Greenville County on or about the 22nd day of October 2008 with intent
to defraud, falsely make, forge, counterfeit, cause or procuré to be falsely made, forged, or counterfeited utter and
publish as true, or willfully act or assist in an.y of the forcgoing, in regard to an instrument of writing, to wit: a
check numbered 226 in the amount of Oné [-iundrcd and no/100 Dollars (§100.00) on.lhg accaunt of Charles
Sinith dmw-n on BB&T Bank and 'present.ed.to BB&T éank. "This is in violation of §16-13-10 of the South

Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended. -

COUNTI1

. That RANDY ERIN JENNINGS did in Grecaville County on or about the 17th day of October 2008 with intent

to defraud, falsety make, fdrge, counterfeiAt, cause or procure 16 be falsely made, forged, or counterfeited utter and
publish as true, or willfully act or assist in any of the foregoing, in regard to an instrument of writing, to wit: a
check numbered 221 in the amount of One Hundred Fifty and no/100 Dollars ($150.00) on the account of Charles

Smith drawn on BB&T Bank and prescated to BB&T Bank. This is in violation of §16-13-10 of the South

Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute irycasc made and provided.:

'////%/%A

sdu}zﬁ’Toa
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF - Greenville )

STATE Vs, 3 INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2009GS2502423

_ Rax_ul_v Erin Jennings ) AIWE: 1368450
ARA: A )y Daeof Offense: _10/30/2008
. W ‘ Sex: M . Age; 31 ) SC,Code § : 16-11-0511

: - )  CDRCode#: _ 0079

Address: )

City Swate. Zip: : .

DL&E: 9999999999 - SIDH: % SENTENCE SHEET

*CDL Yes[_] No[] CMV Yes[} No[ T HazmarYes[| Nof ]

In disposition of the said indicunent comes now the Defendant whu was {1 CONVICTED OF or [1PLEADS’

'TO: Burulary firs degree '

in violationof § 16-11-0311 of the 5.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code ¥ . 0079

{1 NON-VIOLENT VIOLENT ([JSERIOUS  [XIMOST SERIOUS  {[JMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-2545

. : R : w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

The charge is:  [X] As Indicted,  [T]tesser Included Ofense. ‘aives Presentment to Grand Jury, (duefendant's initials)
-Thegleais:  [X] Without Negotiations or Recommen J¢Negotinted Sentence, ] Regommendation by the State.

ATTEST: 5 ‘//_f)' _ ) 4/_“—#4,42/\ SL{?_A"

Z §er n\;arl\ 5 SC Bard L__._@u@ ' Atiomney for Defendant SC Bard
\'HEREFORE. the Defendant is cominited tothe . 3¢ StattHfepartment of Corrections, {] County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of /é édavs/mnnlhs/’) {7 underthe Youthful Offender'Act nottoexceed -~ vears
and/or 10 pay a fine of § . provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

——

of§ - : plus costs and assessutenis as applicable=: the balance is suspended with probation for

maonths/vears and subject to South Carolina Department orProb'xuon Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which arc incorporaled by reference,
< CONCURRENT or L) CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served puxam to S.C. Code . - § 24-13-40 10 be calculated and applied
/%e State Depariment of Corrections. .3 € <5757 —, : :
[T} The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135

Pursunnt 10 18 U.S.C Section 922it is unlawlul for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-63 (Critminal
Domestic Violence ) to shiptransport.possess,or receive a fircarm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [ Deferred [T] ief. \Vaives Hearing © [ ] Ordered  PTUP

Total: §___ plus20% fec: S ___ days/ours Public Service Employment
Paymemt Terms: . ObwiuGED + [

[J Serby SCOPPPS : Attend Voe. Rehab., or Job Corp.

— May serve W/IZ begining

Recipient: 5 Subsiance Abuse Counseling - []

*Fine: - .
. ' < orn Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0

§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5.%) § Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly

§ 14-1-211(AY1) (Conv. Sur_chargc) $100 s \eLal pints. of § . beginning

14-1-21 1A ) (DU] Surcharge M — )
§ < (.)( ) urehiarie) S1e0 s $ * paid 10 Publi¢ Defender Fund
8. 36-3-2993 (NUI Assessment) sSt27% Om——————
S35 1\
§ 56-3-286 (DU Breath Test) - Mg
§ 47.12 (Public Detiob) o S300— LET 7. ﬂW LF7 2
14-1-212 {Law Enforce. Funding) 333

g 14-1-213 (Drup Court Surcharge) S100 § oLy Hor 7 S TE 7 /C;}/J

§ 50-21-114(BUI Breaih Tost Fee) $50 g ey S git S22 7 =T

€ 56-5-2942(J) (Vchicle Assessinent) S10/cn T8 {71 Appointed PD or appainted other counsel. -

-2 00.7 (SCCIA Surcharge) 5SS Sy & 47.12 requires S500 be paid to Clerk.

g

e e dunn" probation.
Couvnty (il paid in installments) S
TOUTAL . s %
. ‘ Presiding Judye ~_ — /’——5

Clerk of Cour/ Depugy Clerk )(LIM&\ p, \J\kd’(_(',no.\\w . Judge Code: 9\,\6_% -
Coun Reporier: N Ja( = O e - : " Sentence Date: _ 33 AT

SCCARZIT(112009) .
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS -
COUNTY OF Greenville ; : . , |

STATE ' VS. ) INDIC'I‘MEN'I'/CASE#: 2009GiS2302422

- . Randy Erin Jennings ) “AIWE: 1368451

ARA: )  Dateof Offense: _10/30/2008

W Sex: M Age: 31 ) S.C.Code § :_16-13-0030(BX1)
R SN )  CDRCode#: 0478

) :\ddn.ss i ) .

City. Siate;Zip: (RS -0 = , .

NTENCE SHEE

DL#:- 999999999 SID#: ) SENTENCE SHEET

*CDL Yes[[] No((] CMV Yes[[] No[] anmal Yes{] NofT} ‘

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who Wwas ] CONVICTED OF ‘or TIPLEADS

TO: Grand Larceny. 3rd property offense . ’

in violtionof  §. 16-13-0030(BY1) ~ ofthe S.C. Codc’orl__m}'s: bearing CDR Code # 2367 .

X] NON-VIOLENT [J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS  [JMOST SERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS(CSC {1€17-25-45

' ) : w/minor Ist or Lewd Aet)
The churge is: (8] As Indicied. [__]I .esser ncluded Offense, CiDclendum Wiive Pr«.sunlmun to Grand Jory. . {defendant's injiials)

Seence. [ Reconunendaiion by the State,

L fpe— 428
Attorney for Defendant . SCBarf

The phea is: {X]Wittiout Negotiations or Recommendalios

ATTEST: . l/ 5
W _ SC/gar#

WHERFEFORE. the Defendant is commited Lo the 34 Stute Departinent of Corrécliohs, 1 Cou nty Detention Center,

for a determinate tlerm of / 42 da)s/momhsor 7] under the Youthfuf Offender Act notto exceed -~ years
andfor to pay a fine of' S ' : prov:dcd that upun the service of —  davs/monthsfvears and/or pavinent

of § ———  plus casts and-assessments s appluablc the balance is suspended with probatien for _ —_—

months/ycars and subject 1o South Carolina Deparument of 'robation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probauon which are incorporated by refcrence.
i_ CONCURRENT or [} CONSECUTIVE to senience on; . :
The Defendant is 1o be given credit for time served p\@am to 8.C. Code § 24-13-40 (o be calculated and applicd
State Departmen of Corrections. 3 =5 ) '
1 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant 1o S.C. Code 217-25-135.

Pursuani 19 18 U.S.C Sectinn 922it Is untawful for a person-coavicted of a violation of Section 16-25.20 or 16-25-65 (Criminat
Domestic \'wluuc } to shipAransport,possess,or receive o firearm or nmmunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
CIRESTTUTION:  [J Deferved [7] Bef. Waives Mearing . [JOrdered  pTUP

Towl: §__ . plus20%feer  °g daysfours Public Service Employment
Payment ferms: . : ObwinGED [
] Set b)-,S(,DPPPS : : . . Auend Voc, Rehab. or Job Corp.
— . May serve W/IE begining -
:}:_c'pw"“ — Substance Abuse Counseling 0
§ 1206 {Assessments 107.5 %) ‘ $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing J '
1AM IS (e Conret ' Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 1d-1-201(A) 1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 S \m m _ pmls: ol s be"mmnn
14-1-211(A)N2) (DU Surcharge) , $I100° S -
g 56-5-2993 (DULAssessment) §12 7T $____ paidio Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1:286 (DU Breath Test) s —g————-—  Others
§ 47.12 (Public DelfProb) $500 ——
§.14-1-212 {Law Enforce. Funding) $157¢ T30
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court-Surcharge) $100 —g— - :
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) . 830 g : ,
8 56-5-2942(J) {Vehicle Assessment) $40fen T § [ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
§ 90.7(SCCIA Su;chi:rgu) ' $5 5 S.0) . 2 4:1.12 |'equi{cs $300 be paid to Clerk
g County (if paid in instabments) S - during probation.
TOTAL 3

Clerk of Court/ Depuxbyjl(;r\k M{P@Q) \'\}\C .i {mag; : ;lrgzlcdg\ogdje\:dge;m/%

Court Reporter: Sentence Date: 3-3°
SCCAZIT (11/2009)

i S B
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) I THI-; COURT OF GENERAL SESS!O.NS
COUNTYOF Greeaville - g '
STATE. . Vs. ' ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: _ 2009GS2303628
Randy Erin Jennings ) AW ' 1477138
AKA: )  Dateof Offense: _10/22/3008
oW Sex: M . Age: 3 ) S.C.Code £ ; 16-13-0010(BX2)
: )  CDRCode#: _ 2427
Address: ) o
City,State,Zip: o IR R
DL# 007537797 SIDE: ) SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yesf ] No[]. CMV Yes[] NoD Hazmat Yes[] Nol’] : :
In disposition of the said indiciment comes now the Defendant who was " [J CONVICTEDOF or [(JPLEADS
TO: -Forgery. value less than $5.000 . ' '
in violation of 3 16-13-0010(B){2) of the S.C. Cotle of Laws, braring CDR Code # 2427
[X] NON-VIOLENT [} VIOLENT [JSERIOUS  [JMOST SERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45
' w/minor Ist or Lewd Act) .
The charge is:  [X] As Indicted.  {“JLesser Included Offense, [ Defendant Waives Prescatment (o Grand Jury. . (defendant's initinls)

tiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.

e SLIP P e

The pleais: (X} Without } \Iego(imions or Recommendatio

ATT FST
$5.
%Mp jSC‘lB[ar.‘.';

WHERD ORE. thé Delendant is commiied 1o the [} State Department of Corrections, (] County Detention Center,

for a detcrminate term of / days/monlhsl or D' under the Youthful Offender Act notto exceed -~ years
and/or 10 pay ' afine of § — provided that upon the secviceof . ~———___ days/months/years and/or payment

—

ant Attorney {or Defendant SC Bar#

ofS " plus costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject 1o South Carofina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard condmons of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.
I CONCURRENT or  .[] CONSECUTIVE 10sencnce om: : ‘
2 Thie Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant 10 S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied -
e State Department of Cortections. _3¢) 77 ‘
[} The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Regisiry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Scction 922,it'is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Scction 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Cruninal
Dowestic Violence ) 1o shnp,tmnsport,poa\(s.s,or receive a firearm or ummunition.

: SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
(JRESTUTUTION: (7] Deferred [] Del. Waives earing Dorderce prUP

Totak  § plus 20% fee: 1Y : days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: - Obtain GED 0
(] Set by SCDPPPS Atiend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp,
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: . Substance Abuse Counseling )
$Cinee X
’Fme. ., . . o 3 Random Drug/Alcohol testing
§ 14-1-206 1Assessmenis 107.5 %) Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthiy .
g 14-1-2! H{A)Y1){Caav. Surcharge) £$100 S )D'D,ﬁ") pmts. of § beginning

: IL'H.'zl iz D) Suenwre) - DS 3 paid o Public Defender Fund
§ 56-3-2995 (DUI Asscssp\cm) $12°73% e

B '36-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $2573 : -

§ 47.12 (Public Dei#Prob) $500 —

§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding), 525 S ogm_] __ _

§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) S g _

- § 50-21-114(BUI Breuth Test Fer) $50 ¢ ‘ :
§ 56-5-2942(1) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/eca " § a Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
§ 90.7 (SCCIA Surcharge) - 555 So g 47.12 regua;es $500 be paid to Clerk

County  (if paid in instaliments) 3 uring probation.
TOTAL S

Presiding Judge

Clerk of Cour/ D&pul\ Clerk @Q !!9 !% Sé d( i Q! DS _ Judge Code: \ﬁq‘

Court Reporter; . ! Sentence Dale: 2 -3-\N
SCCA/217 (1 1/2009) - '



IN 'I;HE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
COUNTY OF . Greenville ; )
_STATE VS, . ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: - 2009GS2303628 _
Randy Erin Jennings ) AW 1477139 . '
AKAT I : y  DateofOffense: _10/17/2008
Sext M Age: 31 y S.C.Code § : 16-13-0010(13)(2)
oo )  CDRCode#: _ 2427
. _ ) | |
DL#: 007537197 . SID: ) SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes{T] No[} CMYV Yes[] No[]] Hazmat Yes[]] No[]] ' ;o
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Delendant who was ~[1 CONVICTEDOF or {JPLEADS
TO: Fargery, valuc less than $5,000 . .
in violationof  § 16-13-0010(B}2) of the 5.C. Code of Laws, beéring CDR Code # 2427
09 NON-VIOLENT™ [ VIOLENT []SERIOUS []MOST SERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS{CSC _ [1§77-25-45

w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

Ihe charge is:  [X] As Indicted. [ JLesser Included Offensc, D Dt.h,ndnm Waives Preseniment to Giand Jury. (defendant’s initials)

The pleais: .. - Xl Without Negotiations or Recommendation Negotiated Sentence,  []  Recommendation by the State.
agase = . ———— .
Altl EST: /KIISS A /rgad‘\ .(“{?‘r
Mofer. Mak / , SC Barif Attorney for Defendant SC Bar¥
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commnited 1o the 5¢ State Department of Correctkons,r [J County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of ._S d'lys/months/@) {7 undes the Youthful Offender A'cl not to exceed years
and/or 10 pay a fine of §. . - yprovided that upon the service of ‘ days/manths/years and/or paymeat

of$ : plus costs and asscssments as applicable*: the balance is suspended with prabation for

nonhsfycars and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation. Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
. probation. which are incorporated by relerence. ' '
i CONCURRENT or T1 CONSECUTIVL 10 sentence on; .
1 The Delendant is to be given credit for time served pyrsuant (o S.C. Code § 24-13-40.to be calcula(ed and applied
e State Department of Corrections. -3 & 275 -~
[} The Dcfendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant o 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Seetion 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Bowmestic Viglence ) to ship,transport,possess.or receive a firearm 6r ammunition, :

» SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
(IRESTITUTION: |} vetereed [7] Dot Wuises Iteaving [} Orderid pTUP

Totah: § - plus 20% fee: $ _ daysfhours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 03

1 Set by SCDOPPPS v Attend Voc. Rehab., or Job Corp.

— ‘ — May serve W/E begining
i{:s‘lflcm: ~ A —— Substance Abuse Counseling rl
& 14-1-200 (A«cwmulls 107.5 %) S Random Drug/Aleohol testing C
: Fine may be pd.-in equal. eonsccutive weckly/momhly

_9 14-1-21{A} ) (Cony, Surcharge) SI00 S 1N -9 pmts: of $ beginning A

§ 14-1-211{A}2) (DUI Surcharge) SI100 § $ ST T

§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Asscssmem) $12 F— _ paidw Public Defender Fund

§ 56-1-286 (DU Breath Test) B2 R e Other:

§ 47.12 {Public De/Prob) $500 — .

§ (41212 (Law Enforce. Funding) - $25 S A5

3 fd-1-213 (()ru& (,()lnl'\urdmr«m) Srun S T ¢ - T

§°50-24-114(BUY Breath Test fee) $50 ¢

§ 56-5-2942()) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca g _ [ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,

§ 90.7 (SCCIA Surcharge) - S S .00 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid 10 Clerk

County  (if paid in insiallments) S o ' during probation. '
TOTAL: $ % .
: Q (\7 o Presiding Judge CI ,‘/-’—Q\B

Clerk of Courl/ Deputy Clerk (h l 2 \M—ﬁ :&” o) S Judge Code: \\;Ae‘}(;r - -
Court Reporter: B‘ ﬁx\«{ﬁ : : Sentence Date: _3~ 3 -\ :

SCCA217 (1172009)



